DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

NAARI

Celebrating women

We take pleasure in presenting the Forty Fourth Annual Report of your Company along with the
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

1.

Financial Results

The Financial Performance of the Company during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 is
given below:-

(Rs. in Million)

| Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
- 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue from operations 978.64 871.08

Other Income 33.93 42.71

Total revenue ) 1,019.23 913.79 |
| Less Expenses: f
| :Cost of Materials consumed 176.57 219.70 '

:Change in Inventories of Finished goods and 2.95 (6.62)

WIP

: Employee benefit expenses 208.49 188.95

: Depreciation and amortization expenses 42.20 36.33

: Finance cost 74.76 56.21 [
| : Other expenses J 309.26 263.79 _{
| Total expenses ' 814.23 727.07
| Profit/(Loss) Before Tax & Exceptional 199.53 186.73
 Items
| Exceptional items: (680.93) (194.45)

Profit / (Loss) after tax from discontinued

operations
| Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (480.86) (7.73)

Provision for - Current tax

Deferred tax [Net] Charge

(Credit)

Other comprehensive income 2.18 (0.17)

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (479.22) (7.90)

2.

Business Performance Review

During the financial year 2022-23, your Company's total revenues stood at Rs. 1,012.57 Million
as compared to Rs. 913.79 Million in 2021-22. During the year under review, the Company
registered a net loss of Rs 479.22 Million.
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3. Change in nature of business:

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of healthcare
and pharmaceutical products. There was no change in nature of the business of the
Company, during the year under review.

4. Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended any Dividend for the
financial year ended 31st March 2023.

The Company is not proposing to carry any amount to reserves.

5. Share Capital

As on 31st March 2023, the Authorized capital of the Company stood at Rs. 86,83,16,000
{Rupees Eighty-Six Crores Eighty-Three Lakhs Sixteen Thousand Only) divided into
25,00,000 (Twenty Five Lakh) equity shares of Rs. 10 each and 83,33,160 (Eighty-Three
Lakh Thirty Three Thousand One Hundred and Sixty) Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred) each and 1,00,000(One Lakh) Optionally
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- (Rupees One Hundred) each.

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up equity capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2023
stood at Rs. 69,43,070/- (Rupees Sixty Nine Lakh Forty Three Thousand and Seventy Only)
consisting of 6,94,307 (Six Lakh Ninety Four Thousand Three Hundred and Seven) equity
shares of Rs. 10/- (Ten) each.

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Preference Share capital of the Company as on 31
March, 2023 stood at Rs20.060,500/- (Rupees Two Crore Sixty Thousand Five Hundred
Only) consisting of 1,65,395 (One Lakh Sixty Five Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety
Five) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One
Hundred) each and 35,210 (Thirty Five Thousand Two Hundred and Ten) Optionally
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- (Rupees One Hundred) each.

During the year under review, to augment the financial resources for the expansion of
business, the Company has done following changes in the capital structure of the Company:

a. Allotment of 6402 (Six Thousand Four Hundred and Two) 0.0001% Optionally
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares vide Board Resolution dated 25.08.2022.

Changes in share capital post the close of financial year until the date of report:
There were no changes in the capital structure of the Company after the closure of the
financial year 2022-23

6. Subsidiaries/Joint Venture/Associate Companies:
As on 31st March 2023, the Company has following Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associate

Companies:
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| SLNo. Name of the Company ‘ Subsidiary/ | No. of shares % of ShalaS:itin
Associate/JV | _held held
1. Naari Pte. Limited, } Subsidiary 15,16,454 99.57%

| _| Singapore | |

During the year, no investments made into the subsidiaries of the Company

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company,
which have occurred between the end of financial year and the date of this report

No material changes and commitments have occurred between the end of the financial year
of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report which
affects the financial position of the Company.

Public Deposit

During the financial year under review, the Company has not accepted or renewed any
public deposits in terms of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed thereunder.

Board of Directors
As on March 31, 2023 the Composition of Board is as under:

1. Mr. Prithipal Singh Kochhar - Whole-time Director (DIN: 01052194)

2. Mr. Chandrappa Seetharamaiah- Nominee Director (DIN: 07405773)

3. Mr. Hermann Josef Peter Osterwald- Nominee Director (DIN: 06710258)
4. Mr. Deepak Komaregowda - Nominee Director (DIN: 03298261)

Change in constitution of the Board between the end of financial vear and the date of
this report:

There we no changes in the constitution of the Board in between the end of financial year
and the date of this report.

Meetings of Board held in Financial Year 2022-23

During the year ended 31st March 2023, 7(Seven) Board Meetings of the Company were
held. These meetings were held on 28% April 2022, 29t June 2022, 22 July 2022, 30t
September 2022, 21st November 2022, 27t December 2022 and 30.03.2023

Attendance at Board Meetings held in Financial Year 2022-23 is as follows;

Name of Director Number of Board Meetings

Mr. Prithipal Singh Kochhar 7

Mr. Chandrappa Seetharamaiah

Mr. Deepak Komaregowda

7
7
4

Mr. Hermann Josef Peter Osterwald

11.

Committees of the Board

During the Financial Year 2022-23, there has been no change in the constitution of the
Audit Committee and Compensation Committee:

Plot No. 30, Galaxy, Village - Sakhanpur Plot 14-16 & 55-57 Sector-5,

1% Main Road, JP Nagar, Pirumadara - 244715, IIE, Pantnagar, Rudrapur - 263153,
Third Phase, Bangalore, Tehsil Ramnagar, Dist. Nainital Dist. U.S. Nagar,

Karnataka - 560078, India. Uttarakhand, India Uttarakhand, India

Tel: 080 4657 0300 Tel: 91 7830 203003 Tel: 91 5944 250367

CIN NO.: U74899KA1978PTC142872



NAARI

During the year under review 3 (Three) Audit Committee meetings were held, resgg;égz,%}éfng e
on 28t April 2022, 30th September 2022, and 21st November 2022.

During the year under review no Compensation Committee meetings were held.

12. Statutory Auditors

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP ("Deloitte”) Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 117366W/W-100018), were the statutory Auditors of the Company they were
appointed at the Annual General Meeting of the company held on September 28, 2018 for a
period of 5 year till the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Accordingly the Board recommends the appointment of M/s. Deloitte I{askins & Sells, LLP
("Deloitte”) Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018), for a
term of 5 years starting from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company
till the conclusion of Forty Nineth Annual General Meeting.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors: There were no instances of fraud
reported by the auditors.

13. Cost Auditors

M/s Rahul Jain and Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. - 101515) Cost
Auditors of the Company have audited the cost records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March 2023.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the appointment of M/s Rahul Jain
and Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. - 101515), having their registered
office at S-511, GF Roshni Building, Ground Floor, Shakarpur Block, Main Vikas Marg,
110092, New Delhi, as Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024,
subject to the confirmation by the Members of the Company in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting on the remuneration to be provided to the Cost Auditor, and accordingly, the same
is placed for approval of the shareholders.

14. Audit Report

(i) Statutory Audit Report: There are no qualifications, observations or adverse remarks in
the Statutory Audit Report issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

(i) Cost Audit Report: The Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March
2023 has been placed before the Board of Directors for its approval at the Board
meeting held on 30t September 2023, which will be filed with the Central
Government in Form CRA-4.

15. Particulars of Employees

The statement containing particulars of employees shall be open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during working hours and any member interested in
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company.

16. Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower
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A complete Vigil Mechanism Policy at Group level of Company is in place. Under this policy
employees of the Company can raise concerns over unethical or improper behaviour/
practices or alleged wrongful conduct, violation of applicable laws, frauds, bribery,
corruption, employee misconduct, illegality, health, safety & environmental issues or
misappropriation of Company funds or assets within the Company or by the Company.

This policy helps in providing a mechanism for personnel to report to the Authority
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of applicable
laws, frauds, bribery, corruption, employee misconduct, illegality, health, safety &
environmental issues or misappropriation of Company funds or assets within the Company

or by the Company.

The Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns
and also that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised

concern.
Particulars of Loans/ Guarantees provided or Investments made by the Company
During the year under review, the company has granted loans/provided

guarantees/securities/made investments under compliance of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

SL ‘ Type of Transaction Name of Entity to which Amount of Loan given
No. Loan is given or guarantee/ | or guarantee/ security
security is provided or is provided or
l investment is made | investment made
[ | | (INRS.)
[ 1 Corporate Guarantee Chayadeep Properties Private 20,00,00,000/-

|
| Limited
|

Purpose: Towards Generai
| corporate purposes |

Details of Investments, Loans/ Guarantees/Securities made/provided by the Company as
on Financial Year ended are mentioned as below:

SL. Type of Transaction Name of Entity to which Amount of Loan given
No. Loan is given or guarantee/ | or guarantee/ security
security is provided or is provided or
investment is made investment made
(IN RS.)
1 Acquisition of Shares Orange Ventures Pte. Ltd, (USD 2,00,000)
(Through Transfer of Singapore
Shares from Orange
Ventures Pte. Ltd,
Singapore.)
2 Investment in Edelweiss Finance and 23,00,00,000/-
Securities Investments Limited
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‘ 3 ‘ Corporate Guarantee Chayadeep Properties Private 20,00,00,0®é"ebpatir|b women
| | Limited '
. 1 |
4 | Investment Naari Pte Ltd, Singapore ' USD 27,55,784
(Subscription of Singapore (13,77,892 shares |
Shares) @USD 2 per share) ‘
5 | Investment in Investment in ECAP Equities 6,00,00,000/-
| Securities Private Limited (Mutual ‘
| ; | Funds) - |
ll 6 | Security (Through Pledge of Investments by the i 6,00,00,000/-
| Pledge of investments) | Company for loan availed by | |
| the Company.
7 | Overseas Direct Naari Pte Ltd, Singapore (USD 2,50,000)
| Investment (ODI) Singapore
‘ 8 Investment in Fixed FD with Yes Bank Limited 10,00,000/-
| Deposits (FD)

18. Loans From Directors/ Related Parties:

During the financial year under review, the Company has not borrowed any amount(s)

from Directors.

19. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All the transactions entered with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and
on arm’s length basis and the same are disclosed in Note 36 of the financial statements of

the Company.

In the tinancial year 2022-23, there are no materially significant related party transactions
with its promoters, the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc.
that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

The particulars of material contracts or arrangements with related parties at arms lengths’
basis referred to in Section 188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC-2 of the Rule 8(2) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given as an Annexure 2 to this Report.

20. Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the
Company for the financial year 2022-23

21. Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts or Tribunals
that would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

22. Secretarial Standards
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23. Internal Financial Control

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

24. Director’s Responsibility Statement

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of your
Company to the best of their knowledge and ability confirm that:

a) in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) they have prepared the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

they have laid down interna! financial controls to be followed by the company and that

such internal financial controis are adequate and were operating effectively.

(9]
—

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

25. Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Work Place

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its
employees.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed
pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013.

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

There were no incidents reported for year ended March 31, 2023.
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Annexure 1

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of ithe Companies Act, 2013 read with
rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. Conservation of Energy: Nil

a) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.
b) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy
c) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment

B. Technology absorption: Nil

a) the efforts made towards technology absorption

b) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

c) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)

the details of technology imported

the year of import

whether the technology been fully absorbed

if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the

reasons thereof;

AW

C. Expenditure on Research & Development:

Particulars 31stMarch, 2023
(Rs. in Million)
Employee Benefits Expense 10.91
Finance Cost o 0.15
Consumables 3.92
Repairs 0.16
Depreciation 0.50
| Analytical Charges B 2.05
Power & Fuel 4.58
Total 22.27

Naari Pharma Private Limited
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Risk Management

The Company has a risk management framework for identifying and managing risks. Board
of Directors of the Company regularly reviews the framework and amend as and when

required.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning/
Outgo and Research & Development

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is enclosed as an Annexure 1 to the

Directors’ Report.

Application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 0f 2016)

During the year under review, there have been no application made by the Company or any
proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial
institutions along with the reasons thereof.

Not applicable

Appreciation

Your Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the excellent support
and co-operation received from the Shareholders, Customers, Financial Institutions, Banks,
[y

Government Authorities, Reserve Bank of India, Manufacturers and Suppliers o the
Company.
At this point, we would like to place on record our sincere appreciation for the total

commitment, dedication, untiring efforts and hard work put in by the employee members
at all levels of the Company in realisation of the corporate goals in the years ahead.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIN: 01052194

Place : Singapore
Date : 30.09.2023

_CSeethar:
< Director \
DIN: 07405773 °

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30.09.2023
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Annexure 1

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. Conservation of Energy: Nil

a) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.
b) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy
c) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment

B. Technology absorption: Nil

a) the efforts made towards technology absorption

b) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

¢) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)
1. the details of technology imported
2. theyear of import
3. whether the technology been fully absorbed
4. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the

reasons thereof;

C. Expenditure on Research & Development:

| Particulars 31stMarch, 2023
(Rs. in Million)
Employee Benefits Expense 10.91
Finance Cost 0.15
Consumables 3.92
| Repairs 0.16
| Depreciation 0.50
Analytical Charges 2.05
Power & Fuel 4.58
Total 22.27
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D. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo:
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(Rs in Million)
- 2022-23 2021-22
Foreign Earnings 1067.45 969.05
Foreign Outgo 89.03 77.44

Prithipal Singh KocTim
Whole Time Director

DIN: 01052194

Place : Singapore

Date : 30.09.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

€S
< ~irector
DIN: 07405773

Place: Bangalore
Date : 30.09.2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of NAARI PHARMA PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Naari Pharma Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash flow statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’'s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the director's report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
W or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
/

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India,
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income , cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash flow statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “"Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private
company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position

in

its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the standalone financial

statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,

(9

as disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that causes us
to believe that the representation given by the Management under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.
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vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sathya P. Koushik

(Partner)

(Membership No. 206920)
(UDIN: 23206920BGYMIB2782)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Naari Pharma Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements established by the respective
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls With reference to standalone financial statements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

JaTbgt—

Sathya P. Koushik
(Partner)
(Membership No. 206920)
(UDIN: 23206920BGYMIB2782)
Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

()

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-
progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use
assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a
programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the
Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use
assets at reasonable intervals having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its activities. No material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date, except the following:

(i)

Particulars Gross Block | Net Block | Remarks
(Rs in | (Rs in
Million as at | Million as at
31 March | 31 March
2023) 2023)
Land and building
thereon
Freehold 258.89 193.98 | The title deeds of land and
building capitalised in the books
of the Company are in the name
Right of use assets 307.19 285.05 | of Indo Phyto Chemicals Private
Limited, the erstwhile name of
the Company.

The Company is in the process of transferring the title deeds of such properties in its name.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right
of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(@) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with books of account.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns
in the nature of unaudited financial information filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters.

The Company has not made investments and granted loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii)(a), (b) (except to the extent
it pertains to guarantees provided and investments made), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order
is not applicable.

(a) The Company has provided guarantee during the year and details of which are given
below:

Particulars Amount

(Rs in mio)

A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:

- Subsidiaries

- Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by individuals who have control/significant
influence over the Company

200.00

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries

- Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by individuals who have
control/significant influence over the Company

200.00

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions
of the grant of all the above-mentioned guarantees provided, during the year are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of making investments. The Company has not granted any loans or
provided guarantees or securities during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit during the year ended March 31, 2023.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records
have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of custom, Duty of excise,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have
been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the
year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty
of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Nature Forum Period to Amount Amount

Statute of dues where which the Involved Unpaid
dispute is amount (Rs in (Rs. in
pending relates mio) mio)

Income Income Commissioner | FY 2017-18 1.97 1.97

Tax Act, Tax of Income Tax

1961

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans
were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made private placement of optionally convertible redeemable
preference shares (OCRPS) during the year. For such allotment of OCRPS, the Company has
complied with the requirements of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the funds
raised have been, prima facie, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for
which the funds were raised.

(@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year ended March 31, 2023.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date
of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to have an
internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and hence reporting under
clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable our opinion the Company has an adequate internal
audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
ended March 31, 2023 the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its subsidiaries companies or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Jolbpgd—

Sathya P. Koushik

(Partner)

(Membership No. 206920)
(UDIN: 23206920BGYMIB2782)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 30, 2023

Page 12 of 12



Nauri Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U74899KA1978PTC142872)
Standalonc Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
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Particulars

A ASSETS
I Non-current assets
(1) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Right-of-use assets
{c} Capital woik in progiess
(d) Other intangible assets
(e) Intangibie assets under development
(£} Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i1} Secunty deposils
() Incoine tax assels (net)
(h) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) [nvestinents
(it} TTade receivables
(ini) Cash and cash cquivalents
(iv} Bank balances other than (it} above
(v) Other financiul assels
{c) Other current assets
(d) Assets classified as held for sale
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Total assets ((+11)
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{a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other equity
Total Equity

Liabilities
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{a) Financial Liabilities
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(i1) Lease liabilities
(11i) Other (inancial liabilities
(b) Provisions
Total Non-current liabilities

e

Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrawings
(ii) Lease habilitics
(1) Trade payables
{A) total outstanding dues of inicio enterprisés and smail enterpuises
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabitities
{¢) Provisions
td) Liabilities ditectly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Total Current liabilities

Total Fypity aud Habifivies (1011
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ari Phurma Private Limited (CIN:U74899KA 1978PT(142872)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amounts in Rupees Million. except lor shares data or as otherwise stated)

SI R Note | For the year ended For the year ended
No Particulars No. | March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
A. |Continuing Operations
1 |Revenue (rom operalions 20 084 42 87108
2 {Other income 21 34 81 4271
3 | l'otal Income (1+2) 1.019.23 | 91379 |
4 | Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 22 176 37 21970
(b) Changes in mventories ol finished goods and work-i-progress 23 2065 (6 62)
(¢) Employee benelits expenses 24 208 49 188 93
(d) IFiance costs 25 7476 5621
(¢) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 26 4220 3633
(1) Other expenses 27 309 26 263 78
l'otat expenses (4) 814.23 758.35
5 |Profit / (Loss) before tax (3-4) 205.00 155.44
6 [Tax expense 28 -
7 |Profit / (Loss) after tax from continuing opcrations (5-6) 205,00 155.44
B. |Discontinucd Operations
(1) Loss from Discontinued Operations (99 44) (163 16)
{ii) Gain on disposal of assets / setlement of labilities auributable 1o the discontinued (387 20)
bperitions (net)
1i1i) lax expense of discontinued operations - -
8 |Profit/ (Loss) after tax from discontinued vperations (686,70} (163.16)
9 |Profit /(Loss) for the year(7+8) (48 1.70) (7.72)
10 {O)ther comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently (o profit or loss:
Remensurements of post employment benelil obligalions- gain / (loss) 218 01N
Income tax relating. to iters that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
‘Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (10) 2.18 (0.17)
11 | Tatal comprehensive income for the year (9+10) (479.52) (7.8N
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10/- cach) (for continuing operations): 31
- Basic (in Rs ) 208 26 15791
- Diluted 0 Rs 1 208 26 15791
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10/- each) (for discontinued operations): | 31
- Basic (in Rs)) (697 61) (165753)
- Diluted fin Rs ) (697 61} (165 75)
Earnings per cquity share (face value of Rs, 10/- cach) (for total operations): 31
- Basic (In Ry ) (489 33) (7 84y
- Diluted (in Rs ) (489 351 (7 841
See pecompanying notes formine part of the standalone financiaf stalements
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Nanri Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U74899KA 978D TC 142872)
Standalone Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31,2023

AR T ,'h.l\;. Milbes eorct Tow whpne w bt on s el l-!_--_.!_'

Particulars

A Cash flow lrom operating activities
Prafic tloss) belore 1ax for the vea
Cantmumg Opetations
Discontinued Operations
Profit / (loss) before tax for the vear tincluding discontinued operitions)

gt adinly

Depreciation amld sumor isation expeise

Loss on disposal ol assets seulement ol habilities atributable to discontmued operatonsinet)
Amaortisation ol processing fee on Loan

Finance costs

Share based compensation expenses

Interest income

Income liom current investment

Provisions no longer tequirted witlen back
Allowanee Ton doubilul trade aned vther recesn ables
Loss on disposal ol property plant and equipments
Uinrealised exchange (gaimyloss (nel)

Operating profit/(lossi before working capital changes
 Traneiyge s o o iirkeing oirprtend

Adpestnenis for titcreaser
laventaries

decrease i operaiing assels

Trade recen ables
Other assels (Anancial & non-linancial)
Adpestrens for mcrease  fdecrease) wr operating hobilines:
Tiade payables
Other liabilities { financial & non-financial)

Net cash used for operating activities
Netncome tax (paid)  refunds
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)
B Cash flow from investing activitics
Captal e spenditure for propenty . plant and equipment and imangible
assets inclucding capital advances
[nvestiments in subsidiary
Investment praceeds tom sale of mutual lunds tnet)
(Increasedectease in bakee held as margin money
Advance received ugainst disposal of assels
Interest 1eeeived
Net cash flow Mrom / (used in) investing activities (I3)

C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds hom issue of equity shares CCPS
Principal payment of lease liubility
Dioceeds [rom non-cunent borrowings
Repayment of non-cutrent borow ings
Proceeds from issue of QCRPS
Net merease  (deciease) in cwrent bonos mps
Interest paid on botrowines
Net cash Now gencerated from financing activities (C)
Nel increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents ai the beginnmg ol the year
Cash andt cash equivalents at the end of the year
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Relwr note 15)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
= Cash and cash equis alents comprises
Cash on hand

Balances with banks
= (1) CUtre I eains
| Total

See fectnmanveae nores formnae pal ol the standalone financial slalements
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Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U 74899KA1978PTC142872)
Standalone Statement of changes 1n equily for the vear ended March 31,2023
{Amounts m Rupees Million. excepl for shaies data or as otherwise slated)

A (1) Equity Share Capital

(1) Current ripiiriing periogd

Balance at the beginning

Changes in

i Balance at the
equity shave

. . . end of the
of the current reporting capital during curvent
period the current . .
reporting period
vear
2348 2348

(1) Previons reporting gl

Balance at the heginning
of the current reporting

Changes in
cquity share
capital during

Balance at the
end of the
current

period the current i .
reporting period
vear
2342 006 2348
B8 Other equity
B o o Reserves Mt'l'!::u;;_:ﬁu_ Total equity . —‘
s ities ttributab
Particulars Qccur!tles Retained A tl'.lbll ablc to
premium equity holders of
earnings =
account the Comipany

Balunce as at April 01, 2021 2,215.34 (958.1%h 1.257.15
Loss for the year - 155 44 155 444
Premium received on shares issued during the year 3373 . 33.73
Loss on Discontinued Operations (163 16) (163 16}
Other Comprehensive Income for the vear W17 {017)
Balance as at Marveh 31,2022 2.249.07 (966.08) 1,282.99
Prafit lor the vear 20500 20500
Loss on Discontinued Operalions (686 70) (686 70)
Other Comprehensive Income tor the year - 218 218
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2.249.07 (1.445.600 803.47

See aecompanying notes forming part of the standalonc financial siatements

In terms ol our report attached

For Deloitte EHaskins & Scils LLP
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Naari Pharma Private Limited (CEN:UT4899KA 197811 C142872)
Notes 1o the standalone financral statements Tor the year ended Maieh 312023

I. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Nuar Pharma Private Limited (the ~Compam ‘1 is o Company meorporated and domiciled i Indsa and has s registered office at Bangalore
Karnataka  The Company 1s an mteglated pharmaceutical company operatmg i the domains of Thiman Health (APIs and finushed dosage
formulations) and alsa carries out iesearch and development activities in such domains

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of Compliance

‘Iese standalone financial statements have been prepared Lo comply in alt matenal aspects with the “Indian Accountng Standards (Ind ASY"
notified under Seetion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act®) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standmds) Rules, 2015 and
relevant amendment rules 1ssued therealler, as apphicable 1o the Campany and other relevant provisions of he Act Accounting policies have
been consislently applied except where a newly issued accountng standard is intnlly adopted or a revision to an ¢xisting accounting
standard requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use,

2.2 Basis of preparation and prescntation
The financial statements have been prepared on the mistorical cost basis exeept for certam financial instruments that are measured at fan
values at the end of each reporting period,

INistorcal cost 1s generalty hased on the fair value of the consideration given m exchanye lor goods and services

Fair value i3 the price that would be 1ecerved to sell an asset or paid 1o (ranster a liabilty m an ordetly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. regardless of whether that price 1s directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique
Fair value for measurement andzor disclosure purposes in these linancial statements is determimed on such a basis exeept for Measurement
that have some simlartics to Taur value but are not Tur value such as “Net Realisable Value as defined i Ind AS 2 — Inventones and value
m use as delined in Ind AS 36- Impairmient ol Assels

2.3 Fusctional and presentation currency
Ihese nancial statements are presented i Indian Rupees (INR 3 which s the Company s {snctional currency Al (inancial information
presented m INR bas been rounded to the nearest million fup to two decimals)

2.4 Significant Accounting Policies
(i) Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue 18 recognised when a promise i a customer contract {performance obligation) has been satistied by transferring control over the
prowmsed goods w the customer Contiol over 4 promised good refers to Lhe ability to direet the use ol and obta substanhally afl ol the
remaining benelits lrom: those gouds Control 15 usually transferred upon sipment. delivery (o upon receipl of gouds by the customer, in
accordance with the delivery and acceptance terms agreed with the cuslomers: Fhe amount of revenue {o be recounised tansaction poice) is
based on the consideration expected 1o be receved 1n exchange [or goods, excluding amaunts collected on behall of third purties such as
sales tax or other laxes directly hoked 1o sales (Fa contract contains more than one performance obligation. the transaction price 1s allocated
1o each performance obliation based on theit relative stand-alone selling prices: Revenue from product sales are recarded net ol allowances
for estmated rebates, cash discounts and estmates ol produet retuns, all of whieh are established at the tme ol sule

Rendering of services

Revenue fiom sale ol service 1s presented nthe meome statement within Revenue [rom vperations The Company presenis revenue nel ol
mdirect taxes i 1ts statement oi profit and loss Sale of services comprise revenue Irom sales of serviees. nt of sales reluras, rebales
meentives and customer discounts

Income [rom research and development scervice s recoumized when the services are completed as per the terms ol the agreement and when ro

stgnificant uncertamty as Lo its determination or realization exists

in case ol long-tenn contracts involving multiple activites. revenue is recornized as and when the indivaidual acivities are completed In the
evenl ot any expected Josses on a contract. the enire amount 1s provided for 1 the accounting petiod 1n which such losses are lirst
anticipated

Dividend and interest income
taterest meome 1s acerued on a tme basts by reference w the prnezpal outstanding and at the elfechive interest rate anplicalle wiieh s (he
| >t to that weset's pet carming amaunl on

jate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash recepts throngh the expeeted iife of the finane::

imitial recounition

Lxport entitlements
[ \port entitfements irom Government acthorilies aie recopmsed i meome statement when the right o recetse credit as per the teems of (he
scheme 1s established in respect of the exports nade by the Company. and where there 1s no stanrticant uneertunty redarding the witmate

collection ol the relevani export proceeds




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U74899KA1978P 1 C142872)
Notes w the standzdone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31 2023

(i) Leases

Ihe Company as lessor:

| eases for which the Company s o lessor is classilied as i linance or vperating Jease Whenever the ters ol the lease transfer substantially
all the nighs and rewards of awnership to the lessee the contract is classified as a finance lease All other Teases e classified as operating
leases

When the Company s an ntermediate lessor. 1l accounts for ils mterests in the head lease and the sublease sepavately  The sublease 1s
classitied ay a finance or operating lease by reference 1o the right-of-use asset ansing from the heud lease

| or operating leases. rental icome 1 recognized on a strarght hine basis over the term ol the relevant lease

Ihe Company as lessec:

The Company assesses. whether the conltact s, ur contains. o lease A contract 18 oF contans a lease 1 the contract mvolves—

(a1 the use ol an 1dentitied assel.

{b) the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identificd asset and

(¢) the night to direet the use ol the 1deniilied asset

The Company has entered into lease arrangements for its factory land The Company al the inception of the lease contract recognizes d Right-
of-Use (Roll) assel al cost and corresponding leuse hability. except for luases with term ol less than lwelve months {short terin) and low-
value assels

The cost of the right-of-use asscls comprises the amount of the nitial measurement ol the lease liability. any lcase pe
before the meepton date of the lease plus anv iniial direct costs. less any Jease ncentives received  Subsequently, the night-ol-use as
accumulated depreciation and accumulated mpaiement fosses. ilany The right-of-use assets 15 depreciated using

‘ments made at or
518

meastred at cost less any
the straght-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term o uscful life of mghl-of-use assels

The tease liabitity 1s imitially measured at amortized cost al the present value of the [uture lease payments I'he lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate mmplicit m the lease o, if not readily determinable. using the cremental borrowing rates Lease liabihtics ure
remeasured with @ conesponding adyustment Lo the refated aght of use asset it the Company changes 1ts assessment (1 whether it will exercise
an exlension or a lermination option

For short-term and low value leases. the Company recognizes the lease paymenis as an operaling expense on a straight-line basis over the
Jease term

(iif) Forcign eurrency transactions and teanslation
Transactions in currencies olher than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencics) are recounised al the rates ol exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions

Al the end of cach reporting period. monetary items denommated i foreiun cureencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date
L xchange differences ansing on settlement or translation ol monetary tiems are recopnized in prolit or loss in the vear m which ttanses

Non-monctary assets and liabilities denominated n forergn currencies that are measured at fur value wre retranslated w the functional
currenes al the exchanue rate at the date swhen the fur value was determined Non-monetary viems that are measured 10 terms ol justorical
cost i L foreign cuneney are translated using the exchange rate at the date ol the hansaciion

(iv) Borrowing costs

Rorrowing costs dirsetly altiibutable to the acquisition. construclion or srection of quallying assets are added o the cost of those assels unill
such time that the assets are substantaily ready tor their intended use Qualifyg assets are assels which take a substanual penod of ume 1o
get ready for then intended use o sule

interest meome carned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifving assets 5 deducted from
1he borrowiny costs eligivle for canitalisotion

All other borrowig costs are recognised 1n prolitor tuss n the pertod m hich they are icurved

Borrowing cosis constst ol interest and other costs that an entits neurs i connection with the horrow,ng of furds Borrowiny costs nelude
eachange dillerences ansmng fiom forergn curreney harrowings 1o the extent thal they are reparded as an adjustment 1o nwerest costs

{v) Employce Benefits

a. Defined benefit plans

Jyments 10 detined coninbubion retirement benelit slans are recognised is an expense wien emplosees have rendered service entithng them

o Lthe comtribultons

A Jerined benefit plan 1s a post-emplovment benelit plaa other thian a defined contetbution plan 1he Compuny s watuity scheme s in the
nature ol delined benclit plans




Nanri Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U74899KA 1978P TC142872)

Noles to lhe standalone fingneial statements lor the vear ended Mareh 31,2023

tor delined retnement benefit plans. the cost of providing benelii s detenmined using projected unit eredit method. with actuarial valuation
betng carned out at the end of vach financial year Re-imcasurement, compuising actuacial gams and losses. the effect ol the changes to the
asset cerhiny Gl applicabled. 1~ rebected immediately in the balance sheet with charge o1 credit recogntsed 1n other cumprehensive income m
the pertod m which they occr Re-measurement recogiised i other comprehensise meome s teflected nmimediately in retaned earmngs and
is not reclassified w profit or loss Pust service cost s recogmzed 1n profit or loss i the period of a plan amendment Netinterest is cateulated
by appiving the discount rate at the heginning ol the pertod Lo the net delined henelit fabihty ov assel Delined benefil cosls are categorized
as lollows

service coslumncludimg current service Cost past service tost as well as wams and Josses on curtaiiments and settlementsi.

net inlerest expense or income: and
re-maasurement

The Company presents the [irst two components of defined benefit costs m prafit or loss in the hne ttem Employee benelits expense!
Curtarlment gains and losses are accounted for as past service cosls IMe retirement benelit obhyation recogmised in Lie balance sheet
represents the actual deficit or suiplus an the Company's defined benelit plarts Any surplus resulting (rom this caleulation is limited 1o the
present value of any economic benefits available in the lorm of refunds from the plans or reductions m Tutwe contributions W the plans

b. Short-term aud other long-term employee henefits

A liability 15 recognised for shorl-lerm ginplovee benefit in respect o wages and salaries annual leave and sick feave, medical and leave
travel i the pentod the related serviee 1s rendered al the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be pand in exchange for that service

Liabilities recogmised in respect af plher long-lerm employee benetits are measured al the present value of the esiimiated futute cash outllows
expeeled o be made by the company 1n respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date | wbility for un-uvailed leave
considered to he lany term 1s carned based on an actuanial valuation carried out at the end of each financial year

¢. Stock appreciations rights

I'he fur value of stock appreciation nghts {SARs) is recognised as an employee benelit ¢xpense with a corresponding financial liability The
initial recaunilion of expenat is at ‘i value of cquity share on dute of wrant which then 1§ fare valued as at cach reporting date

(vi) Taxation
Income tax comprises current and delerred tax fncome lax expense 15 recognized i the statement of profit and loss except to the extent i
relates 1o 1ems direetly recopmized 10 equity or in other compiehensive meome

a. Curreat tax
I'he tax currently payadle 15 based o6 tavable prolit for the
profit and toss because of tems of income or expense that are lasable or deductivle tn other vears and ilems that are never tax ile of

ccar Vaxable prolit differs from ‘profit helore tax’ as reportud n the statement ol

deductble The Company's current tax 1s caleulaled using ax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end ol the
reporting pernod

Minunum aliernative tas £MA T pad inaceordance 1o the tax laws which gives nise 1o Tuture econom:c benelits in the [orm of adjusiment
of Titure iy liabihits s considered as an asset if there 15 convineing evidence that lne Company will pay mormal meome ax 10 [uture years
Accordingly MA T is recognized as i wssels 1 the balance sheat when 1t is probable that the future eeonomic beacfit associaled with 1wl
flow 1 the Company and asset can be measured reliably

b, Deferved tax

Delerred tax 1s recognised on temporary differences between the cairyiny amounts of assets and habihues 1 the linancial statements and the
corresponding tas bases used in the computation of masahle profit Nelerred tax labihtes are wencrally recogmised for all tasable temporary
dilferences Deferred Ly assets are generally recogntsed for all deducuble temporary diflerences o the uatent Lhat 1bis prabable that lasable
pofits wilk be avatable auainst which those deductible temporary diflerences and the carny forward ol unused tax credits and unused (s
from the il iecogmuion

Josses can he utiised Such deferred (ax assets and habihies are not recognised 11 the temporany difference an:
fother than tn 3 business cumbiaationy al assets and Dabilities i a transaction that aflects nedher the taxahle arofit nor the accountig profit
I addition, deferred @y liab:hities are not recoemsed if the lemsporany dilference arises [rom the iniial recogmtion ol goodwill

[he carnving amount ol defened sax assels is reviewed at the end al cach reporting period and 1educed o the extent that 1tis no Jonyuer
probable that sufticient tasable prolit will be avanlable 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset o be usheed

Detiired s assets and labshiues are measured at the tx ates that e expected W appls i the penod in whieh e assel s realsed or the
labihty s settfed: based on tax rates tand tax faws ) that have been enacied or substantively enacted at the end ol cach reporhing period

s rellecis the s consequences that woule follow trom the manner wineh e

e measurement of deterred tax Babilines and 2

Comnany expects at the end ol the reporimg penod. o recover or settle the carmving amaunt al’vs aswe's ana habidiies




Naarh Pharma Private Limired (CIN:1 74899KA 1978P1C142872)
Notes 1o the standalone financial staiements for the year ended March 31,2023

(vii) Property, plant and equipment

Reeognition and mensurement
ftams of property plant and vquipment capital work i progress are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impanment losses

Cost mcludes expenditure that 1s direetly atinbutable w bringing the assel Lo the location and conditon necessary for nts mtended use The
cost of self-construeted assets includes the cost of materials and other costs directly altributable to bringing the asset to a working conditton
for its intended use

When parts of an item ol properly. plant and equipment have significant cost relation 1o total cost and different usetul lives. they are
1eeognized and depreciated separately

Depreciation 15 recognised so as 1o write olt the cost of assets {other than Lreehold land) less their residual values. using the straighi-line
method. over the useful lives specilied 1 Schedule (1 1o the Companivs Act, 2013

Nature of assets Useful life in years
Buildings 28-30

Plant and machinery 2-20
Computers and servers 3-6

Office equipments 5-10
Furnitures and listures 10

Vehicles o

Ihe estumated uselul tives. residual values and depreciation methad are reviewed at the end of each reporuny period. with the eflect of any
chanues in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of un item ol praperly. plant und equipment is recoghised In the carrying amount of the item il 1 is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within the part will Nlow 1o the Company and its cost can be measured rehiably  The costs of repuirs
and mamtenance are tecognized in income statement as incurred

Derecognition of Property, Plant & Equipment

An tlem of property. plant and equipment 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economse benefits are expecied Lo arise from the
continued use of the assel Anv gain or oss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property. plant and cquipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and Lhe earrying amount of the asset and 15 recognuised i profil or loss

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assels and disposal groups are classisied as held tor sale o therr carrying amount will be recovered priacipully through a sale
transactior rather than through continuiny use

‘Fhis condition is regarded as met only when the asset fur disposal gioup) 15 avatlable for pmiediate sale 1n ity present condition subject

only 10 tenms that are usual and customary lor sales of suck assel (or disposal group) and 11s sale is highly probable. Management must be
commitied to the sale. which should be expected Lo qualify for recognition as o completed sale wilhin one year [rom the date of classificaiion

The Company categorses Non-cunent assels as “held for sale” when there is a praposal tention (o sell an assel o group ol assets s
present condition
Non-current assets tand disposal groups ) classified as held Tor sale are measured at the fower of their carry i amount and lain value less

costs to sell

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation 15 a component of the Company s business that represents & separate Iine of business that has been disposed ull or
s held Tor sale. or s a substdiary acquired exclusively with a view Lo resale Classtlication as a discontinued operation occurs upon the earlier
ol disposal or when the aperation meuts the eniteria 1o be classihied as held tor sale

The gatn or loss ansing on disposal business 1s recognised in the statemens of prolitand loss

{viid) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangihic assets that are acquired by the Company. which have finite uselfud Tives, are nreasured at cost less aveumulated amortisation and
accutnuiated impairment losses Amorlisation 1s tecognised on strarght-hne basts over the estialed usciul fives I'he estimated usetal life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end ol cach linancial vear with the efieet ol any changes 1n estimate being accounted for on a
prospecting hasts Cost mcludes any direetly attebutable merdents] expenses necessany 10 Mahe the assels ready for use




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:UT4899KA1978PTC142872)
Noles o the standalone [inancial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

Internally -generated intangible asset research and developmenl expenditure
[xpendilure on research activities (s recognised as an expense n the year in which 1t 1s incurred

An miernally -penerated intangible asset arising lrom development (or from Lhe development phase of an internal project) is recognised il
and only 11, all of the Tollowing have been demonstrated

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that 1t will be avarlable for use or sale:

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use ar sell 1t

- the ability 10 use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benetits:

- the availability ol adequate technical, financial and other resources (o complete the development and to use or sell the intangible assel.
and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure atiributable to the intangsible asset during 1ts development

The amount mitially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred (rom the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria lisied above Where no internally-generated intangible assel can be recognised,
development expendilure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which il is ncurred

Subsequent to nitial recognition. internally-generated intangible assets are reporied at cost less accumulated amortisalion and accumulated
{mpairment losses, on the same basis 4s intangible assels thal are acyuired separalely

Useful lives of intangible nssets
Estimate useful lives of the intangible assets are as fotlow:

Nature of assety Useful life in years
Product and process development 10
Acquired software 1-5

Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs 13 capilalised only when il ncreases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates, Ali
other expenditures, including expenditure on internally penerated intangibles, are recognised in profit or loss as incurred

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal. or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or dispasal. Gains or losses
arising {rom derecognition of an intanyible assel. measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset. and are recopmsed in the statement of prolit or loss

(ix) [nventories
[nventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable vatue

Cost includes cost ol purchase and other cosls incurred m bringing the inventories (o their present location and concition Cost s deternined
on actual cosl basis as follows

(i) Raw materials, packing materials and consumables Al purchase cost including other cost incurred in bringing materialsrconsumables o
their present location and condition

{ii) Work in process and Intermediales At matenial cost, consersion costs and appropriate share of production overheads

(1) rinished goods: Al material cost, conversion costs and an appropriate shuse of production overheads and excise duty. wherever
applicable

{iv) Scrap: At net reabizable value

Net realizable value 1s the estimated sellimg price in the ordinary course of business. less estimaled costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary 1o make the sale

(x) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recopnized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construchve) as a result of a past esent. it is probable that an
outtlow of ecanomic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

T'he amount recognized as a provision 1s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the prescat obligation at the end of the
reporting period. laking tto account the risks and uncertaintics surraunchng the obligation

When some o all of the economic benefits required 1o scttle a provision are expected 1w be recovered from a third parly. the receivable s
recognized as an asset. it 1s virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the recervable can be ineasured reliably

Contingent liabililies are nol recognized bul are disclosed m the notes 1o financial statements Contingent assels are nol recognized hut are
disclosed 1n the notes to financial statements when economic inflow 1s probable




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U74899KA 1978 TC 142872)
Notes o the standalone linancial statements for the year ended March 312023

(xi) Financial instruments
Fonancial acsets and Tinancial hahilies are reeognised when @ entity beeomes a parly o the cuntractual prov stons ol the mstruments

All finaneral instruments are mitially measured at fur value Transaction costs that are attributable Lo the acquisition or 1ssue ol the financial
assets and Fnancial iabilities (other than financial assets reconded at lur vadue through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fan
value of the financil assets or financial labiives as appropriate, on il recopnition  Transaction cost directly atnibutable o the
Jal Tiatities at fur value through profit or loss are recopmsed immediately 1n the statement ol

acquisibion or 1ssue ol linancral assels or finas

mofitand loss

Putchase or sales of financial assets that requite delivery of assels within a tme frame estublished by regulation or convention 1n the markel
place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade dale

For the purpose of subsequent measurement. [inancial instruments of the Company are classified i the following categories non-derivative
finuncial assets camprising amortised cost. debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive ncome (FYTOCT), equily instruments
al FYTOC!I and fair value through prolil and loss account (FVTPL L. non-derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost o1 FVTPL and
derivative linancial mstruments (under the category of financial assets or financial labilities) ol FVTPL

The classitication of financial instruments depends on the objective of the bustness mode for which it s held Management determmes the
classification ol its financial istruments al inilial recounition

a) Non-derivative financial assets

1ssets at amortised cost
sset shall be measured at amortised cost 1f both of the following conditions are met

(i) Financia
A financial o

(a) The financial assel 1s held within a business model whose objective is 0 hold {inancial assets in order o collect contractual cash Nows
and

(by The contractual tering of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arz solely pavments of principal and nterest on
the principal amount outstanding ¢ SPPI'

Financial assels ate measured imtially at fwr value plus trunsachion gosts and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the ellective
interest rate *FIR ) method, Tess any impairment loss

Fimancial assels al amortised cost are represented by trade recervables. secunty deposits cash and cash cquivalents, emplovee and other
advances and ehigible current and non-current assets

(ii) Debt instruments at FYTOC]
A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 1f both of the following condittons are mel

(a) The ebjective of the busmess model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling {inaneial assets and
{b) The asset's contractund cash (low tepresent SPPPY

Debt mstruments ncluded within FVIOCH category are measured intiially s well as at each reporting penod at fair value plus transaction
costs larr value movements are recopruised m other comprehensive income 10CH However the Company recognises interest income
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain'loss m statement of profit and Toss On derccozniiion or' the asset, cumulative gaimn
or loss previously recogmsed in OCH s rectassified from equity (o profitand loss

(iii) Financial assets at FVIPL
FVIPL s a residual calegory tor linancial assets Any financial assel which does not meet the eviteria [or categorization @
oras FV1IOCL s classtiied as FVTPL

at amorttsed cosi

in addition. the Company muy eleet 1o destnale the financial asset. which otherwise meets amortised cost or FYTOCT erteria, as FVIPLL
domy so elimmates or significanty reduces a measurement or recoRNILON INCONSISIENCY The Company hus not desienated any linancial asset
us PV TPL

Fnancial assets metuded within the FV TPL category are measured at fair values soth all changes in the statement ol profit and loss

{iv) Dereeognition ol financial assets

I'he Company derecogmises a financial asset when the contractual rights o the eash lows from the asset expree, or the linaneial assels s
transferred and the ansier quaiilics for derecogmtion On derecogniion of a finarcial asset 0 s entiely the difTerenee between the
cirving amount imeasured at the date ol derecogniions and the consideraton recerved (ieludmg any new assets obtaimed less any new
liabuity assumedy shall be recognised i the statement ol prafit or loss exeept for debt and equity nstuments carmed through for value

throuyh other comprehensive eome which skal) be recogosed i ather comprehensive income




~Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U 74899 KA 1978P TC142872)
Noles to the standalone financial statements for tie vear ended March 312023

by Non-derivative financial linbilitics

(i) Finaneial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial abilities al amortised cost represented by tade and other payables are ity recognized at fann value, and subscquently carned at
amortized cost usmg Lhe EIR method

(ii) Finaucial liabilities at FVTPI
Finanetal liabilities al FV IPL iepresented by contingent consideration are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement
ol protit or loss

¢) PDerivarive financial instruments
The Company holds dentvative financial instruments such as foretgn exchanpe forward contracts to mtigate the risk of changes m foreign
st or liabiliies Dervatives are recopnmized and measured al fir value, Altnbutable transaction cost

exchange rates on foreign currency
are recognized 1n statement of profit and loss

d) Derecognition of financial Liabiliticy

i'he Company derecogmses financial habihuies only when. the obligations are discharged. cancelled or have expired Lhe difference between
the carrving amount of the fnancial liability derccogmised and the consideration paid and pasable is recognised m the stalement ot prolit or
loss

(xii) Impairment

Financial assels
In accordance with Ind AS 109 the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model Jor measurzment and recounttion ol impairment loss
The Company follows 'simplilied approach’ for recognition ol impairment loss allowance on trade recenable

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company 10 track changes in credit nsk Rather. it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetme BCLs at each reporting date. right from its iniual recognition

Tor recogniion ol impairment loss on viher linancial assets and nsk exposwre, the Company determines thal whether there has been a
significant increase in the credil nsk since inutial recognuion LI credit risk s not incieased stemificantly 12-month ECL 1s used 1o provide
for impairment loss Llowever, il credit usk has increased significantly hfetime ECL 1s used 1 in subsequent period credit quality of” the
instrument improves such that there is no tonger a signilicant increase in credit nsk sinee imitial reeognition then the entity fevernts
recognismg impairment loss allowance based on 12 monih ECL

Lifetime FCLs are the expected eredit lasses resulting from all possible default cvents aver the expected life ol a financial instrument The 12
month LCL ts a portion of the Iifetme ECL which esulis from default events that are posstble within 12 months after the reporting dale

ECL 15 the dilTerence Selween ali contiactual cash fows that are due 1o the Company in aceardance with the contract and all the cash ltows
thal the enliy expects to receive (1e all shortfallst, discounted al the origimal IR When estimating the cash flows. an untity 1 required (o
consider

(1) All contiactual terms ot the financial instrument (including prepuyment. exiension gte ) over the expected hile ol the financial instrument
I fowever. in raie cases when the espected life ol the finuncial instrument cannol be estimaled reliably. then the ennty 18 required Lo use the
remaining contractual term of the financial mstrument:

i Cash Mows Trom tie saie ol collalerat held or other credil enhancements that are inteyral to the contrucluat terms

As a practical expedient the Company uses a provision matrix o determine impairment loss on portlalio ol 1ts trade recetvable  The
provision matax 1s based on 1ts histonically observed default rates oven the expeeted Iife of the trade recervable and s adrusied lor Torward-
fooking cstimates AL every reporting date the historical observed defaull rates are updated and changes i lorsaid-looking estimates are
anajysed

1ECL imparrment toss allowance tor iesersal) recogmised dunmny the period 1 recogised as income expense m Lhe statemient ol praliv and
loss [his amount is reflected under tie head other sxpenses m (he statement af profit and loss The balanee shuct piesentation for vanous
financial msteuments 1s deseribed below

Fonanciai assels measured at amortised cost. contractual revenue recervable ECL 1s presented as an allowance te as an inegral part ol the
measurement of those aseets i the balanee sheel The allowacce reduces the nel carmying mount LUnlit the aselmests wale off critenna the
Company does nolreduce imparrment allowance Jrom the gross carryine amount




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:UT4R99KA1978P1C 142872)
Notes o the standalone financial < atemenss 1or the year ended March 31 2023

Non-linancial ussets

I'he Company assesses al cach reporting date whether there 15 any ohjective evidency that o non-financial asset o a group ol non-fnanenil
assets s ampaned 1any such impairment exisis: Lhe recoverable amount ol an assel s estimited 1o determine extent ob impairment 1l any
Where 1 s not possible 1o estimale the recoverable amount of an mdividual asset the company extimates the recoverable amounl af the cash-

seneriting unit W which the assel belongs

(xiii) Earnings per share
Busic carnings per share s computed using the wetghted average number ol equity shares outstanding dunng the penod

Diluted EPS 1s computed by dividing the net profic alter tax by the weighled average number ol equity shares considered for denving basie
118 and also werghted average number of equity shares that could have been 1ssued upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares
Dilutine potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginming of the period. unless 1ssued at 4 later dale Dilutive potential equity
shares are determined independently (or cach perniod presented  The number of cquity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted [or bonus shares. as appropriale

(xiv) [nsurance Claims
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted : expected to be admitied and to the extent that there 1s no uncerlainty 1n
recerving the clanms

{xv) Dividends
Dividends and intenim dividends payable 1o 3 Company™s sharcholders are recogmzed as changes in cquity i the peciod 1 which they aie
approved by (he shareholders” meeting and the Boatd of Diceclors respectivels

(xvi) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depostts with an original maturity of three
munths or less. which are subject w an insignificant nsk of changes in value

{xvii) Segments
Sepments have been identified taking into account the nature of services, the differing fisks and returns. the organtsational structure and the

internal reporting system

{xviit) Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products  achvities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition ol assets and their realisation 1n cash or
cash cquivalents. the Company has determined its operating eycle as twelve months for the purpose of classitication ol 1ts assets and
liabiliues as current and non-current

2A Use of estimates and management judgments

In appheation of the accounting polic which are described n note 2 the management ol the company 15 1equired 10 make judgements
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily appatent from ollier sources | he estumales
and assumplions are based on historical expenience and other factors that are considered 10 e relevant Actual resulls may differ [rom (hese

¢stmiates

Ihe estnnates and underlying asswmptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the period
i which the estimates are revised 11 the revision alTeets onfy that period, or 1 the period of revision and futuie penods i1 the revision alfects
both current and future periods In particular information about sienilicant areas ol estmation uncerlainty and ¢nitcal judgements used in
applying accounting policies that have the most signilicant elleet on Lhe amounts recopnised n Lhe financial statements is included @ the
following notes

Ssets

i. Uselul life of property, plant and equipment and intangible 2
The uselul life of the assels are determimed  accordance wilh Schedule |11 ol the Compantes Acl 2013 In <
diflerent from that preseribed in Schedule 311t 1s based on technical adviee taking mto account the nuture of the asset Lhe estumaded us
the asset. the operating condilions of the asset past history af replacement. anticipated techoological changes, manufaciurers warsanties and

«. where the uselul ltfe s

ol

matnlenance

ii. Impairment
An imparrment {oss 15 recognised for the amount by which an asset’s or cash-pencraling wnit s canying amounl exceeds 1l recoverable
amount Lo delermine the recoverable amounl. management estimities expected discounted  luture cash Nows fiom cach asset or cagh-
generating unit

iti. Deferred tax
Delerred income ks assel are recopnized W the extent that 1L 1s probable that @xable profit wilt be avanlable against which the deductible
temporuny differences. and the carry forwaid of unused ax credis and unused Ly losses can be utilized Deterred meome ax habiltes

recopmized forall axaile temporary dilTerences

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN;:U74899KA 1978PTC142872)
Notes to the standalone financia! statements for the year ended March 31,2023

iv. Fair Value
Management uses valuation techmques in measuring the tair value of financial instruments where active market quotes are not available. In
applying the valuation techmques, management makes maximum use of markel inputs and uses estimates and assumptions thal are. as far as
possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use pricing the instrumenl. Where applicable data is not
observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market purticipants would make. These estimates may vary from
the actual prices that would be achieved n an arm’s length transaction at the reporling date

v. Post-retirement benefit plans
The obligation arising from the defincd benefit plan 15 determined on the basis of actuarial assumplions which include discount rale, trends in
salary escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy The discount rate is determined with reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on the government bonds.

vi. Provisions and contingencies
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past
experience and circumstances known at the reporting date The actual outflow of resources at a fulure date may therefore vary from the figure
estunated at end of financial year
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Nanri Pharma Provate Limited (CINTUT4RI9KA1978P [C142872)
Notes to the standatene financial statements for the year ended Maich 312023
(Amaunt in Rapees Mithon. except for shanes lata ot 45 olherwise stated?

Note
No.
4 fovestiments

Total

T AsaiMarch 31,2023 - As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Oty Amuonunt Qty Amount

- (Current MNan Curvent Current Non Current
Investments in subsidiaries (carrivd at cost):
Equity shares, ungunted (Face value of LISD /- each)
Naari Pre [td, Sinpapore 15.16,454 271537 15,16.454 27337
Investinents in Mutusl Funds, quoted (carricd at Fair Value):

Investments in units of stinctured debt 1,011 263 46 2,274 33153
15.17.465 263.46 273.37 15,18.728 331.53 27337

Aggregate amount of quoted investments carried at Fair value 011 263 46 - 2,274 33153 -
Agprepate amount of unguoted investments carried at Cost 15.16.454 - 273.37 15.16.454 - 273,37

Nute:

() As comolidated financial Steténienis is beng prepared by the parent company, Temsh 1

of nd AS 110 Consolidated Feancial Statements hos opied nut 1o prepare comsalidated financial statenenis.

i) The market value of quoted imvestments is equal 1o the carrynig valie and are highly liguid investments

S Security deposils

harmacenticals Prvate Limited, the Company, by way of exemplion avatlahle as per para 4

As a{ March 31,2023

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Current Non- Current Current | Non- Current
Security deposits - 6.62 7.56
Less: Derecopnised on disposal of business (refes mue *8) - (0,73} -
Total 5.89 - 7.56

GA Income tax assets (net)

f As al Magch 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
fiasucniac Current Nan- Current Current Non- Current
Insecured, considerad good:
- TDS recervable - 378 - 2.23
Total 3.78 2.23
6B Other asscts
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
Current Nan- Current Current | Non- Current
Unseenred, considered pond:
- Capital advances - 744 2001
Balances with goverament authurities
. @S] credit & other reccivable 5748 53 57
Advances to vendots 3939 2906 -
Advances (0 cmployees 040 - 202 -
Prepaid expenses 103 - 135 005
Unsecured, considered doubtlul:
- Capital advances 2429 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (2.29) . =
Rulances with government authorities - Consider ed doubtful
- GST aedit & other receivable 358 - -
[Less: Allowance tor lime bared vascs (3 58) I
f.es Derceamnized an disposal of business (izfer note 3%, (3,19 (021 . -
Tolal 95.11 723 6.0 20016 |
7 Anyentorics
Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022
(AL liwer of cost and net realisable value)
Raws materials and packing materials 10100
Work-in-propress 103 28
Finished poods 130,77
318 D3
Lage Derecognised on dispasel of busingss [eler nofe 38) W —a__
Total 116,19 335.05

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS




Naani Pharmg Private Limiited (CIN:UTIB90K A 197811 C142872)

Sotes o e standalone Hnancial statements for the year ended
CAameuntin Repees Mithon, excent fon shaves data or as otherws

Note
No.
8

Notes:

(U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

o)

10

e stated )

Tiade reccivables

atch 31, 2023

Partic As at March 31. 2023 As at Mareh 31,2022
articulars
— Current Non- Current Current Nun- Current
Tragke 1cceivables « i good - imirecnzed 50768 52155
Trade receivables - credit impained 1.25 1260
508 93 522 81
Less Derecognised on disposal of busiess (1efer note 38) (18 96} -
489,97 522.81
Less Alluwanee tor credit loss {125) i1.20)
Total 188.72 521.55 -]
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Asat March3T,
LORTOE Less than 6 months - More than .
- e 6 manths 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 vears o
(i) Undisputed Trade receivabies - conaidered gaod 290 72 153 99 3229 1128 0.44 . 488 72
(1) Undisputed trade receivobles - credil impaired - - - - 0.67 0.58 125
_ 290.72 153.99 32.29 11.28 1.11 0.58 489.97
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment As at March
Particulars 31,2022
Not due Less than 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 vears Morelthan Total
G months 1 year N 3 years
(i) Undispuied Trade reccivables - considered good 3RG 97 120,23 8.25 6.10 - . 52155
{u) Undisputed trade receivables - credil impatred - . . 067 0.42 017 1.26
386.97 120.23 8.25 6,77 0.42 0.17 52281

The Company uses a provision mairix to detennine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receiv

observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted fou forw

abscrved default raies are updated and changes i forwaid-looking estnates aie analysed

able The provision matrix is based on its histerically

ard-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical

Mavenent tn Expected eredit luss allowance:

. As at March | As at March
Particulars
31,2023 31,2022
Opeuing balance 126 6.08
Mavement i exnected eredit Jass allawance an tade eceivables ealculuted ul lifetine sxpected credil losses (0.01) (4 82)
Cloging balance 1.25 1,26

The Company has trade 1eccivable from onc customer aggiegating to Rs 487 57 million which is individually 10ore than 10 percent of the Compeny's

(otal nade receivable as on balance sheet date Tiade reccivable from such customer was Rs

of the Company's total nade receivable as at Mach 31 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

448 24 million which is individually more than 10 percent

| Tutnl

Particulars As at Mareh 31, | Asat March 31,
033 022
a3l on haad 0.08 020
Balances with banks
= 1) gHTTent actaynts 2.76 1.69
Taotal 2.84 1.89
Other balances with banks
Particulars As al March 31, | Asal March 31,
- 2023 2022
[Taree el as margin money
awninst bormowims 4ad Warking capilal facililes with bl 4§52 10.85
4.52 10.85

Cher impneind assets

Purticulars

As al March 31,

As at March 31,

_"i‘u"l.

2023 2022
Considervd pood - unsecured:
Bark to market gain on derivative instrument - 0.14
Oller recenvables fiom subsiliarics 19.08 2132
19.08 21.46

Non-current borrowings

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31, ‘

o 2023 2022
Secured Duruwing:
- T foans frum dunks 276.6Y 125 45 l
Tual 276.69 125.45 |




Nuari Plarma Prisoate Limited (CIN:UT4899KAT9TSPTCI 126872)
“olta to the slamialune linancral statements for the year ended Mareh 3 2023

(A mouat i Rup s KMathon, except fol shates data or as athenvise stited!
Niste
No
Details of security and (crms of repavmient of nun-curient horrowings
"Terms of repayment and security: Loan 1 - 1 As at Sareh |
. » S0 |
Monecunent borrowings
Cunent matunties of non-ouent bonowmgs 47495
Security  The said Jnan 1s secumed by First Haid Passu cliatpe 11 miovaliie and immovable assels of the Cumpany
located at Kashipur and Rudiapur and Second clinige an eiiire cument assels of the comipuny {Bath juesent & future)
snd Unconditional & Irevacable corpurate guinantee of Tenshi Pliannkeeuticals Private Limiled Fepayment teams: 5%
{qinl manthly instalments of Rs 3 1 Million commencing from Jan-20
Fate of Imerest: 11 50% pa i.e ROl equal to LTLR less 775%
Terms of repayment and security: Loan 2 As ut March | As at March
Juiu i 31,2023 31,2022
Nanscurenit bomowings 2150 3250
(Cuneni maturities of non-cunent borrowings 10.00 7.50
4zcunty: The said loan is secured by Second Pari Passu charge on movable and immovable assels o the company
Incated at Kashipur and Rudrapur and Residual charge ofi cunent assets of the company
Repayment terms: 44 equal monthly tostalments of Rs 083 Million commencing from July-22
Rate of Intercst: 11.50% p a i.c ROIequal to LTLR less 7 75%,
Terms of repayment and securily: Loan 3 As at Mureh || As.at March
pay b — 31,2023 | 31.20m2
Man-eunant borrowings 2000
Current matunties of non-ciirent honowings -
Sezuriny. The said loan is secured by Second Pari Passu chaipe on movable and ilmmovable assets of the compimy
located at Kashipun and Rudrapur and Residual charge on cuirent assets of fhe compzny.
Repay nent ferms: 48 equal monthly instalments ol Rs 0,42 Million commencing liom June-24
Bt of Tuterest 11.50% poa. 1e, ROl equal wr LTLR Jess 7.75%,
" : Az at March | As at Mutch
Terms of repayment and security: Loan 4 31,2023 31,2022
Momcunen: horrowings :
Cyrrenl matunhies of won-cuisent borrowings 63 85
Seeunity The said loainis secited by Flest pan-passu chayge on the enlire mavable fixed assets and immovable assets
of the Company situated at Rudrapw and Sccond pan-passu charge over flie cunenl assets of the company both
present & futuie and Unconditional & Inevocable Guarsniee of Tenshi Pharmaceuticals Private Limited, M Arun
Kumar and My Prithipal Singh Koclar
Repayment tems: 7 quarterly instalinents of USD 036 Milliow commenting Gom Mar-20 Gl Sep-21 and 4 quarely
inslalments of USD 0 44 Million comumencing fiom Dec-21
Rate of Interest: USD 3 Month LIBOR and spread per antium
“ur tlie above mentioned loan, Company has tiuken 1nterest vate swap with the same party fiom whom the loan ts
wailerd and thereby converting the intetest rate on the loan fo a specified fixed nterest rate o 749% pa
As at March | As at March
Terms of repayment and security: Loan §
4 ! Fity a1, 2m3 31,2022
Mo ment burowings 3919 9392
Current matunities of nor-cunent bunowings 1966 589
Secant The said loan 15 secured by hypothecation af stocks, bills. book debts, recervanle & cunent assets, Mixed
assets The Tust Pari Passu cliarge along with 10107 Bank and TCFSL, WB- botl factory lecated at Kashipur{Owned)
and Rudiapur (Lease hold)
Repayment terms: 72 equal monthly instalinents of s 1 65 Milhan commencing ficm Noy-22
Rate of Tnterest ROI equal to 6 Menths L+3 00%
Terms of repayment and security: Loan § As at March | As at March
- 31,2023 | 31,2022
Man-curent bonowings 145 00 -
Curtent mudurives of non-curtent bonawings -
This facility is covered by 100% pumantee from NCG TC( National Credit Guarantee Pustee Company Lid (Miuistry
af Finance , Gavernment of India)
Hapavaieat iwms 36 equal munthly instelments of R. 4 536 Million commencing from Ocl-24
Rate of Interest  RUi Exuals to 8 25% p a Interest to be serviced on maonthly basi:
. As at March | As at March
Particulars
31,2023
s=if undér non-cune¢t borrowings 276 69
4 under surrent DOITowINgS
pvent istuntic of dop-current aiowines - 29 65 12518




Naari Phacies Private Limited (CIN:ULT4899RKA [WTRPTC142872)
Nutes 1o the arch 312025
SAmoant s Rupees Mithen except for shares data or as otherwioe s ateel)

adaione Guanetal sateents for the venn ended M

Noty
Nt
19 Providions
d . As al March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Particulars e— .
(I . — Current Nun- Current Current Nan- Current
Provision for emplovee henefits
= Cicatany 424 1131 270 13 56
Compensated abrences 131 ‘ 764 390 10 8
i 455 18.98 6.60 243
Lesy Lintulies directly asdocmed with assews classificd as beld for sale o m [618) . -
Totul 5.77 12,80 6,60 1438
15 Lease liabilities
Parti As at March 31. 2023 As at March 31,2022
articulars
Current Non- Current Current Non- Current
- Lease linbilities 044 478 | 02} 2522
Total 0.44 24.78 0.21 25.22
16 Horrowings
. As at March 31, 2023 As ol March 31, 2022
Parliculars
Current Neon- Current Current Non- Current
Unsccured:
- Optionally Convertible Redeemable preference shares 34098 - 27898 -
- Cwrent matwiities of non-current borowings 29.65 . 12518
- Worhine capial loans fioin banks and finaneial instiutions 306.07 - 377.33 .
Total 676.70 - 781.4Y -
Qptionally Convertible Redcemable preference shares of Rs. 100/ each
The Company bas only vne class of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (QOCRPS) having a par value of Ry 100/- pet share. The
OCRPS do not have any 1ight any voling rights. Lach OCRPS is cititled ta Preferential dividend at the rate 0f 0.0001% per annum on the face value of
Rs 100/~ The said prefarcnce shaves shall rank for dividend en prionity 10 Lquity Shaes, Each OCRPS shall be converted into Equity shares, at any
time post Septeraber 30 2022 il 20 years fiom (he dale of allotnent or on occuitence of certain events at the option of the Company or holder of ihe
OCRPS
(i) Detaits of Optionally Convertible Redeemalie preference shares lield by each sharcholder hulding more than S% of shares:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
Name of sharcholder Number of shares " Number of v,
1 shares
Ragpal Sin 2,065 5 86% 2,065 TV 7%
I & P Investments Parincrship 8.260 23 46% - .
IJ-\r.snlm-li Pharmpceuticals Povate Limited - 8260 28.67%
Tenshi Phanmaccaticals h Lid 16,728 47 51%4 10,526 35 84%
L\mm Paviie Eanity Trust 2228 2053 R | 25.00%
Details uf security and terms of repayment for current borrowings:

(i) Working capital loans ticmn banks are secured by firit pari-passu charge over curent assets of the Company, both present and future and sccond pari-
passu charge on the sntite movable fixed asscts and iinmovable assets of the Compuny sitvaled at Rudiapur and Uneonditional & tirevocable Guarantee
of Tenshi Pharmaceuticals Private Limited. Mr Arun Kumar and Mr Prithipal Singh Kacchar
Rate of Interest: IF-MCLR 6M + 2 00%

17 Trade pavables

Parti As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
articulars -
Current Non Currenl Current Non Cucrent
- Total oulstanding dues of iicto cuterpices and small enlerprises 975 1373
- Total oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 232.90 31886
242 G5 - 312 39
Less Lenhilitios girectly associared with assets classified as held for sale (6351 - -
Total 179.14 332.59 .
Quistanding fur fullowing perinds from due date ol pavment As at March
Particulars Nat due Less than 1 yr. 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs, More than 3 '31' 20;3
vrs
(1} MSME 269 602 0402 - 873
(1) Others 83 56 78 50 613 062 160 [70.41
86.25 84.52 6.15 (.62 1.60 179,14
Qutstanding for following perinds from due datc of pavment As st Mareh
Particulars Not duc Less than 1 yr. -2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. More than 3 31,2022
Vs
(1)) MSME 792 581 - . 1573
{11) Others o 160 28 oo | a7af 094 L] IEY )
168.20 124.85 3731 0.94 1.29 332.59




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:UT4899KA1978P 1 C142872)
Nales 1o (he standalone financial statcments for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount m Rupees Millian. ¢xcept for shares data or as otherwise stated)

Note
No

Disclmnre renquiretd undes section 12 of the Migra, Suall and Medium Entdrprises Developmeot Act, 2006°

T As ot March | Asat March

Particulars 31,2023 312022
(11 Principal amount remaining unpaid to any --!l['}I!JL'T?ISﬂ! the end ol 1he accounting year 95 EEE
(11 Interest duc thereon reinainmg unpaid lo any suppliers as at the end of the accounting ycar 222 337
{111) The amount of interest paid along wiil: the amounts of the payment made (o the suppliers beyond the appointed -
(i%) The amount of nterest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but -
582 3.60

(+) The amount of inferest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

(1) The amount of further interest duc and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues
3¢ above are actually paid to the small enterpnse, for the purposc of disallowance as o deductible expenditure undes
section 23 of the MSMED Act

v Amount disclaszid in MSME includes bath eontinuing and discontinied operalians

Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the

manageinent. This has been relied upon by the auditors

18 Other financial liabllities

Particulars As ot March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Current Non- Current Current Nan- Current
Interest accrued but not due on bormrowings 1.63 . 1.44 +
fmesest accrued on MSME 5.82 3.60
Matk to market loss on derivative instrument 0.82 - .
Mavable (o related parties - - 0.97 -
Provision for other cinployee bencfits - 40.73 - 10.44
B.27 40.73 6.01 10.44
(reditors for capital supplies/scrvices 12.26 - 16 35 -
Less: Liabilities divectly associated with assets classified as held for sale (7.55}
4.71 - 16.35 -
| Tatal 12.98 40.73 22.36 10.44
19 Other liabilitles
Parti As at March 31, 2023 As al March 31, 2022
articulars
Current Non- Current Current Noan- Current
Advenee from cuslomers 244,10 - 253.16 -
Advanic= fiom Aresko Life scicuces (Refer Note No.38) 30.00 - .
Stawtory dues 5,02 - 6.60 -
279.12 - 259.76
Less: Liabilines direetly ngsocined with agicts classified as held for sale (1 44) - -
Total B - 277.68 - 259.76

3
-
GHARTERED |en
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ari Pharma Private Lintited (CIN:U74899KA 1978 TC142872)
¢n 1o the standalone luancial slatements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Aneunts 1 Rupees Milhon, except far shates data or as olherw se slaled)
Note

No.

12A (a) Equity Share Capital

(i)

. As al March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars = = = —
_|Nao of Shares Amount |No of Shares Amount
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 25,00,000 25.00 25.00,000 25.00
Compulsorily conventible preference shares of Rs. 100/- cach 8333,160 | 83332 83,313,160 83332
85832 | 858.32
Issued
FEquity shares of Rs 10/- each 6,94,307 6.94 6,94,307 6.94
Compulsorily converlible prefeience shares of Rs. 100/- cach 1,65,395 16.54 1,65,395 16.54
Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 6,94,307 6.94 6,94,307 6.94
Compulserily convertible preference shares of Rs 100/- each 1,65,395 16.54 1,65,395 10.54
[ Total — T amas| 23.48
{i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding
Issue of
. . . shares " i
Particulars Opening Balance during the Closing Balance
vear
Equity sharss of Rs 104 each
Yuar Ended Mpich 31, 2023
Mo of Shares 6,86,952 - 6,86,952
Amount Rg m Million 6.87 - 6.87
Compulsealy comvertible preference shares of Rs. 100/ cach
t B Il
No. of Shares 1,65,395 . 1,65,395
Amount Rzoan Milion 16 54 - 16.54
=nded Mmeh
Mo of Shares 6,86,952 6,86,952
Amotnt Rsan Million 6 47 - 6 87
f Ra 100/ eacl
No: o Sharss 1.65,395 1,65,395
Amount R i Nillivn 16.54 - 16 54

Detail of the rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares:

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

The Company has only ane class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs 10/-. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Each equity
shareholder is entitled to dividend in the Company The dividend prapased hy the board of directors is subject lo approval by the sharcholders at the ensuing
annual general meeting In the event of liquidation of the Coinpany, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled (o receive any of the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution ta all preferential amounts The distribution will be {n proportion to number of equily shares held by the shareholders

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 100/- each

The Company has only one class of Compulserily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) having a par value of Rs 100/- per share The holder of CCPS shall be
entitled 1o receive notice of and vole on all matters that are submitted (0 the vote of the Shareholders (Including the holders of Equity Shares). Each CCPS shall
entitle the holder 1o the number of vates equal to the number of whole or fiactional Equity Shares into which such CCPS could then be converted Each CCPS is
entitled to Preferential dividend at the rate of 0 0001% per annum. The said preference shares shall rank for dividend on prionty to Equity Shares Each CCPS shall
be converted into Equily shares, at any time post September 30 2020 (ill 20 years rom the date of allotment or on occuitence of certain events at the option of the
helder of the CCPS

Pursuant to the tenns and condilions apreed upon between the sharcholders and the Company, Tenshi Phannaceuticals Private Limnited has assured a minimuin rate
of return (JRR) of 15% per annum, to the holder of CCPS

&
(o
CHARTERED \%»



Nanri Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U74899KA (978PTC142872)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Amaunts m Rupees Million, except for shares data or as otherwise stated)

(ii) Shures held by prometers at the end of the year:

o i T o T T AsatMarch31.2023
. Change ’ . %a Change
Name of sharcholder No: ol'.shnns e during the Fully paid Pdrtly.pmd Number of during the
beginning of the year i equity % ,
year Equity Shares shares Year
shares
Eajpzl Singh Kocchar 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 | 14 40% 000%
Tenshi Pharmaccuticals Pvt Lid 4.16,593 4.16.593 4.16,593 | 60.00% 0.00%
o As at March 31, 2022
Change ) % Change
Name of sharcholder No: uf.shnn.s - during the Fully paid Pnrtly.p.ml Number of during the
beginning of {he year R equity % ,
year Equity Shares shares Year
shares
Rajpa!l Singll Kacchar ’ 2,50,000 (1,50,000) 1,00,000 . 1,00,000 | 1440% | -6000%
Tenshi Pharmacenticals Pvt Ltd 4.16,593 - 4.16.593 . 416.593 | 6000% 0.00%
(iii) Details of equity shares held by each shareholder liolding more than 5% of shares:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
f sharchol
Name of sharcholder Number of shares ” Number of o
shares
Rajpal Singh Kecchar 100,000 1440% 1,00,000 | 14.40%
Prithipal Singh Kocchar 750000 10.80% 75,000 | 10.80%
Inderpal Singh Kochhar 750000  10.80% 75,000 | 10.80%
Tenshi Planmaceutieals Pvi Lid 416,523 60.00% 416553 | 60.00%
Compulsanly sonvedible proference shnres of Rs 100/ gach
Asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
N f sh Id i
ame of shareholder Number of shares o, Number of %
shares
Ascent Private Equity Trust 1.65.395] 100.00% 165,395 | 100 00%



Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:UI7T4899KA1978PTC142872)
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Amount in Rupees Million, except for shares data or us otherwise stated)
Note
No.

12B  Other equity

Particulars As at March | As at March
31,2023 31,2022

Securities premium account 2,249.07 224907

Retamed eamings (1.443.60) (966.08)

Total 803.47 1.282.99

Parficulars As at March | As at March
31,2023 31, 2022

(A) Reserves and surplus

(i) Security premium account

Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium

Opening balance 2,249.07 221534

Add: Premium on shares issued during the year - 33.73

Closing balance 2.249.07 2.249.07

(ii) Retained earnings
Retained eamings comprises of the amounts that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to 1ts equity share

holders
QOpening balance

(966.08) (958.19)

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 205.00 155.44
Add Loss on Discontinued Operations (686.70) (163.16)
Add: Remeasuraments of post-emplovment benetit obligation (net of tax] 2.18 {0.17)
Closing balance (1.445.60) (966.08)
803.47 1.282.9%

Total reserves and surplus

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS




Naari Pharma Privite Limited (CIN:U74899KA1978P [C142872)
Notes 10 the stndalone Hinancial s wtements Tor the vear ended March 31 2023
FAmount i Rapees Million. except [or shares data or as otherwise stated)

Note
No.
200 Resenue from operalions

. . For the year ended
Particulars
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Sule of products 749 49 73595
Sule of scrvices 234 70 13513
Other operating revenuces
- Duty drawback and other export mcentives (23 -
Total 984.42 871.08
(i) |Sale of products comprises
Manulactured goods - bulk drugs 749 49 73595
Total 749.49 735.95

(ii) Revenuc from major customers
Revenue from one customer of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023 was 948 56 miilion which is individually more
than 10 percent of the Company's total revenue for the year Revenue from such customer was Rs 80791 million which is
individually more than 10 percent of the Company's total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2022

21 Other income

. . For the vear ended
Particulars T
March 31.2023 ; March 31,2022
Income on investment  Mutual funds 24 46 3671
Intcrest income 049 0 54
Interest income on Electricity Deposit 019 012
Exchange (uctuation gain {net) 0 88
Insurance Claim Received - 3.00
Pravisions no loneer reguired wrillen back $.79 234
Total 34.81 42,71
22 Cost of materials consumed
. FFor the vear ended
Particulars
March 31.2023| March 31,2022
Opening stock 101 00 108 81
l.ess - Opening stock pursuant to disposal of business (34 52) (48.87)
66 48 5094
Add Purchases 20336 226 24
Closing stack 9711 101 00
I.ess Closing stock pursuant to disposal of business (3.84) (34 52)
9327 66 48
Cost of materials consumed 176.57 219.70

23  Changes in inventaries of finished goods and worl-in-progress

For the vear ended
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022

Particulars

Inventories at the heginning of the year:

Finished goods 103 28 58 29
Work-in-progress and intermediales 13077 119 44
234.05 177.73

Less © Inventories at the beginning of the year pursuant to disposal of business
Finished gooads (98 A1) (56 67)
Work-in-ptogress and intermedialcs (72 64) (64 88)
(171.25) -121.55
Toventories af the heginnine of the vear: 62.80 56.18

Inventories al the end of the year:

Finished goods 2901 103 28
Work-in-progress and iniermediaies . £ I SR -1 v 2
72.14 234.05
Less : Inventories at the end of the vear pursuant to disposal of business
Finished goods 21 15) 98 61)
Work-in-progress and intermediates (28 (6) (72 64)
(49.21} (171.25)
Toventories at the end of the vear: 22.93 62.80
Add [nventories capiiniised ) 36.92 -

Net (ineeense) / decresse 2,95 (6.62)]




Nairi Pharma Private Limited ((‘L\:l1748‘)‘)Kz\l‘)7\‘ll"l’(f]42872)
Notes Lo the staraalone financial statements lor the year ended Maich 31,2023
{Amaunt in Rupees Million. except for shares data or 1s othenwise stated)

Note
No.
24 Emplovee benefits expenscs
Paricutars For the year ended
o March 31, 2023 | Muarch 31, 2022
Suluoes and wages 171 41 165 52
Less Amounts lransferred to intangthles under development {1091) [4.64)
160 50 160.83
(“ontribution lo provident and other funds 92s 945
Gratuity cxpense 307 2.06
Share basced payment expensc 30.29 10 44
Other employee benefits 5.38 6.17
Total 208.49 188.95
25  Finance costs
Particulars For the vear ended
Mareh 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Interest costs:
- Interest on loans 44 96 41.74
- Interest on MSME 222 337
- Interest on Lease Liability 2.77 0.92
{e=s- Amounts transferred to intangibles under development (0.15) (0.43)
49,80 45 .60
Exchange diflerence regarded 4s an adjustment to borrowing costs 674 (1.29)
Other finance costs 1822 11.80
‘Total 74.706 56.21
26 Deprecintion sand Amortisation expenses
Particutars For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment [Refer Note No. 3JA)* 58.42 35.03
Lese Depreciation expense on disposal of business (refer note 38) (26 42) 2518)
Less: Depreciation cross charged to Naari Ple (0.49) -
31.50 29.85
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note No. 3B) 553 412
Amorlisation of Intangible assets (Reler Note No 3D)* 629 429
Less: Amartisation expense on disposal of business (refer note 38) (0 63) (031)
less Deprecintion and Amortisation capualised as Intamnbles under development [(510)} (i.62)
Total 42.20 36.33
27 Other expenses
W o For the year ended
g March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Power and tucl 40 80 5577
Consumplion of consumables 15.59 11.77
Contract labour charges 3t s3 2785
Repairs and maintenance
Buildings 315 263
- Machinery 529 241
- Others 936 733
Rates and taxes 1277 517
Legal and professional fees 7376 3277
Communication 301 017
Travelling and conveyance 1475 492
Insurance S73 339
Rent including lease rentals 115 097
Freight and forwarding RG 11 7315
Business promotion 028 0 RS
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipients 026 064
Loss on sale af Duty drawback credils 244
Allowance tor doubtful trade and other receivahles 411 126
£ xchange fluctuation loss (net) . 057
['ayments to statutory auditors (Refer note (1) below) 220 1 §5
Analytical charges 499 2964
Miscullpnaous Cxpenses 513 713
Total 319.97 272,70
Toss: Amounts transferred to intangibles under development (Refer Note 3E} (10,71} (8.92)
| Fatal 309.26 263.78 |

(i) Pavment to the statutory duditors enmprises (net of tuxes) for:
Particutars _ For the year ended
- March 31. 2023 | March 31, 2022
210 1 83
(04
- 0 06 003
. 220 185




Noari Pharmi Private Linited (CIN:U748Y9KATYTEP TO142872)
Motes 1o the standalene linancial statements fur the year ended March 31 2023

“Ameudnt i Rupecs Mithon exeept [or shazes data vr us othenwise siated)

Note
No.

28

30

31

32

Tax expense
Current tax During the year and m the previous year, the Company
tax under Sec 115113 ot the Income Tax Act 1961

Defer

:d tax For the year ended March 3

does not have tasable incomue as per repular computation and as per mimimum altemate

1, 2023, delerred tax comprises of the timing diflerences relaling to depreciatian on property, plant & cquipmens,

provision for doubitiul trades recervables, provision far cmplives benefits, fuir valuation ol security deposits. carry forward iosses and others. The Company

has sigmiicant brought forward (ax lews and unabsorted depreciation. an

correspotiding deferied tax liabrlity 2o

A

Income lax

As at March 31, 2022. the unrccognised tax credits in respect of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation s per tax

984 S1 Million

Commitments (To the extent not provided for)

d has recognised the ansing deferred ax asset on such losses to the extent of the
it on the difference hetween the boak balance of fixed assets and the witlen down value of such lixed assets under

returns amounts to Rs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Fstimated amount of contracls remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net
of advances)

-Property, 'lant and cyjuipment

3001

48 30

Total

3001

48 30

Contingent liabilities

Particulirs

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Corporate puaranlee

Contincent liabilities - Pending litigations (to the extent not provided for)

200.00
167

20162
1.97

‘I'ransfer pricing: In respect of transter pricing regulations under scction 92 to
its international transactions are al arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any
amoun! of tax expense and that of pravision for lax.

Eiainings por sliar

928 of the Indian Income tax Act, 1961, the Company is of the opinion that
impact on the financial statements, particularly on the

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Basic earnings per share:
- From continuitg operations 20826 15791
- ['rom discontinued operations (697 61) (165 75)
‘Total basic earnings per share @ (489.35) (7.84)
Diluted carnings per share @
- From continuing operations 208 26 15791
- I'rom discontinued aperations (69761) (165 75)
Total diluted earnings per share @ (489.35) {7.84
Profit / (foss) attributable to the cquity holders of the Company
- From continuing aperations 205 00 15544
- From discontinued vpeiations (686 70) (163 16)
Total operations (481,70} (1.72)]
Waighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator in calculating basic earnings 9.84,357 9,684,357
per share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share - .
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator in calcufating diluted 9.84,357 9,584,357
earnings per share

Leases

Company as a lessee’ The Company has entered into lcase arrangements [or its factory land and buildings {offi

accounting policics adopted by Company in respect of Ind AS 116

Moy ement in Fight-uf-use asscts and lease liabilitics during the year:
Right-of-use nssets:

ce premise)

Refer note 24 (i1) for the

Particulars Leasc hold land Buildings Total
Opening balance as on April 01, 2021 291 87 . 291 87
Additions . 2549 2549
Depregiation (341) [CNAY] (412)
Dieletions - - -
Closing balance as on March 31, 2622 288.46 24.78 313.24
Additions ] . -
Fepreciation (341 (2.12) (553)
Dieietions -
285,058 22.66 30771 |
Lenye liabilities — — . R . _
Particulars | March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Op<ting balunce [ 2543 -
Addutions : 2549
Interest 277 092
Lenye paymenis 12.98) 10.38)
Clusing balance B 25.22 2543
- T 44 021
2478 25122




Naavi Pharma Private Limited (CIN:UT4899KA1978PTC142872)
Notes to the standalone financial statements lor the year ended March 31, 2023
LAmount in Rupees Milhion, except for shares data or as olherwise stated)
Note

No.

The below tihle provides details regarding the contraetul mnturitics of lense labilities an an undiscounted basis:

. ) M 31,2023] March 31, 2022
Particulars EEETRETET Y 1
Buildings Buildings
[.css than one year a7 299
One to live vears 14 68 1345
Mare than live vears 2759 3159
Toal 45.44 | 48.43

Lease rent cxpense on shori-term and low value fease recopnived in Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

o the vear ended

March 31,2023 |

March 31,2022

Short-tenm and low vitlue lease rontals {Reter note (i) below)

L1s |

0.97

Note
(i) The entity has entered into a lease arrangement with State Industrial Development Corporation of Uttarakhand Limited for a period of 90 years commencing
from October 05, 2016 at Rudrapur and the entire amount being paid in advance, there s no lease liability
(i) The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemplion to its short-tenn leases ol certain premises taken on lease (i e those Icase that have a
lease term of 12 months o less from the commencement date and do pot contain a purchase option)
34  Employee Benefits Plans
(a) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes conltibutions to provident fund and employce state insurance schemes which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees.
Under the =chemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentipe ol the payroll cost to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to these
plans by the Company are at ralcs specified in the rules of the schemes
Amount recognised in the 8 ot of Profit and §ass
Particulars As at Mareh 31,2023 | Axat March 31, 2022
Employer contribition o
Provident fund 925 945
Emploves state insurance scheme 0.19 0,22
+ {he above amounts are excluding costs debited to discontinued operalions
(b)  Compensated al -
Particulars As af March 31,2023 | Asat March 31, 2022
Provision for compensated absence
Non-current 7 64 10 82
Current 431 360
Exponse charged to statement of prafit and loss ateount 1,77 177
* the above amounts are including costs debited to discantinued operations
(¢} Defined benefit plan

actuarial risks such as longevity nsk and salary risk

The Company and its Indian subsidiaries offers aratuity benefits, a defined employce benefit scheme (o its cmployees The said benefit plan is exposed to

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability 12 calculated by r=lerence to the best
estimate of the morality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An

Longevity risk _ o A
Increase in the Iife expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabiliny

The present value of the defined henefit plan hability 1s caleulated by reference (o the
{inure salaries of plan participants As such, an increase in the salary of the plan

Salary Risk
participants will inciease the plan's Jiability

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuntion as al

Particulars T -

Asat March 31,2023 | Asat March 31, 2022
Discount rate - 7 30 6.33%
Expected rate af salary increase 730" 75004
Altrition mile 28.00%4) 20,00%
[Rebrement age (in yeam) =% Years 58 Yeurs

Martality rate TALM2012-147 Ultinvite




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:U T4899KA Y781 TC142872)

Notes

1o the stardalone financial statements Tor the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

{Amount in Rupees Million, except for shaies data or as otherwise stated)

Note
No.

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss and in other comprehensive income in respeet of these defined henefit plan are as follows:

| AsatMarch 31,2023 | AsatDarch 31, 2022

Particulars

Servive cost

GATCH service vt 345 298

Pasy service cost and {ganloss from seltie

et inlerest expense I R 094 | 0]
Components of defined benefit costs recngnised in statement af profi and loss B 4.39 3.72

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit linbility
Return on plan assets [excluding amounts included 1n net interest exnensc] {excess) 7 Shod return -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions (G 75)

Acluarial (gains) /7 losses ansing from changes in financial assumpuions (0 46) (0.33)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience adjusiments (0.97) 050
Componenits of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income {2.18) 0.17
Total 2.21 3.89

* he above amounts arc including costs debited to discontinued operations
The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the *Employee benefits expense” line tem in the statement of profit and
loss The remeasurement of the net defined benefit lability is included in other comprehensive income

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

Particulars As at Mareh 31,2023 | Asat March 31, 2022
Present value of funded defined benefit oblipation 15,58 1626
Iair value of plan assets . -
Funded statos liabilities / (ayset) 15.58 16.26
Net liahility / (nsset) arising from defined benefit obligation 15.58 16.26
Currenl 562 270
Non-curient 15.03 12,56
20.65 16.26
Less : Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 5.07 -
15.58 1626

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars As at Mareh 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Openiny defined benefit obligation 16.26 13 60
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Lurrent service cost 345 298
Interest cost 094 074
Remeasurenient (pains)/losses recognised in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gains and losses arising (rom changes in dernographic assumptions (0 75) .
Actuarial gains and josses arising from changes in financial assumptions (0 46) (033)
Actunrial gams and losses arising [tom experience adjustments (097) 050
Benelits paid {2 89 (123

15.58 16.26

Closing defined henefit ublizntion .

Significant actuarial assumptions tor the determination of the defincd obligation are discount rate and expected salary incrcase The sensitivity analysis
befow have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respeclive assumptions occurring at the and of the reporting period. while holding
all other assumptions constant

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31,2022
Discount rale
Y% increase (13 13) (15 56)
| % decrease o 16.06 1703
1:xpecled salary growth
1% increase 1598 1693
{% decrease (1520) (15 64)

The wen v analysis presented ubove may not be representative of the setual charie in the defined benelit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in

assumptions would occur in isolaiion of onz another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projecled unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benetit obhization lability recounised i the
balance shecet

There was no change in the methuds and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years

There has heen no change in the pracess used by the Company to manage its risks from prior periods

Expected future cash vutflows towards the plan arc as follows-

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As<ai March 31,2022
Year 1 424 270
Yeur 2 318 249
Year 3 2.69 229
Yeur 4 235 221
Year § 197 197
rears 610 10 423 649
Above 10 Years o 43 1 449




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CIN:UT4899KA1978PTC142872)
Notes 10 the standalonc financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in Rupees Million, exeept for shares data or as otherwisc stated)

Note
No.

35
A

Related party information:

List of related partiess

Cantralling parties

_|[Nnme ol the reluted parties

Tensht Phanmaceuticals Private Limited (Refer Note (1) Below)
Arun Kumas Pill

Sunsidiares and fellow subsidiary companies

Manri Pre Limifed

I enaly Kaizen Private Limited

Maart Esta Pre Lid, Singapone

Muan USA Ing, USA

Haan B ¥V, Netherlond

Maar: UA Ple Lid, Singapore

Nuvad Lile Sciences Pre Lid, Singapors

Jointly controlled entity and pssociates

SOP Phanna LLC

irector and Key Management Personnel

Pritlupal Singh Kochhar
Chandiappa Scetharmmaiah
ieepak Komaregowda
Hermann Osterwald

Enterprises owned or Significantly influenced by individuals
wlio have control/significant influence over the Company

Jagsanpal Pharmaceuticals Limited
Dharuhera Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Suvinys Develapers Private Limited

Areska Life Seiences Private Limited
IRaypal Singh Kochhar

| K Enterprises

fakshit Organisational Operations and Transformations Private Limited
RPSK Strategic LLP

Chavadesp Properties Private Limited
Siridies Pharma Science Limited

Arcolab Private Limited

Notes:

i) Pursuant to Scheme of amalganmtion approved by relevant regulatory authority on November 29, 2022
and Karuna Healthcare Private Limited (KHPL') have been merged into Tenshi Pharmaceuticals Privale

filed the Scheme approval copy with the Registrar of Companies on January 06, 2023

, Tenshi Life Sciences Private Limited (TLSPL")
Limited. Tenshi Life Sciences Private Limited has
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Pharma Privite Limited (CTS:UTIR99RA 19787 T(142872)
Natex to the standal, finsancial stat is for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amuuni in Rupees Million, excent for shares data or as otherwise staled)

Noar

Segment reporting

The Company has identified business segmenls at 1ls pr.mary segment and geographic segments as (15 secondary segment Business segments wi= primanly Finished Domage
Form (FDF) and Active Pharmaceulical Ingredient (API) Reveaucs and expenses directly aitributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment All ither
expenses which arc nol atiributable or allocable to segm have been disclosed as unall d Assets and il nes that ane direcily awribulable or allocable fiy

segments arc disclosed under each repartable segmeant Al ather assets and Liabiliies are d.sclosed as unailocated-

Disclosures regarding geographical information: The zeagraphical information of (he Segment’s revenues and assels are shown separately in the table below Sepecnt
revenues hos been d d based on geographica! lacation of the custamers Segmenl assels has been disclosed based on the geographical location of the respeclive assets

Particulars FDF - Continuing operations | APE Discontinued aperationg Unsllocaled Total
Current year | Previaus Year | Current year | Previous Year| Current year Previous Yenr| Current vear Previons Yesr
Segmenl Revenues
Revenue from operations 984 42 87108 27863 182 70 1,263 05 1,053 718
Other income - . 3481 4271 34 8] 42171
Tolal Revenue 984.42 871.08 278.63 182.70 34.81 42.71 1,297.86 1,096.49
Sepment Expenses 718,89 679,42 351.02 31986 - - 1,069 91 999 27
[Less: Capitalised 121 62) (13.61) - - - - (21 62) (13.61)
o727 665.81 351.02 319.86 1,048.29 985.67
Pepreciation 4220 36133 2705 2549 - 69 25 6182
Imterest Expenses . 051 7476 $621 7475 5672
Linallecated & - . -
Exceptinngl Tncome/
Seqtment resnlis 244.95 16R.94 (99.44) (163.16) (39.95) (13.50) 105.56 (1.72)
Segment assets 1,674 05 1,597 06 788.72 690 78 540 61 60713 3,003 38 2,894 97
Segment liabilites 55432 57135 8146 104 21 95339 906 94 1,589 17 1,588 50
CAPITAL TMPLODYE]D 1,119.73 1,019.71 707 26 SAf 87 (412 7R) (299 R1) 1,414.21 1,306 .47

Information rezarding seographical revenue frant aperations is as follows (including discontinued operations) :

B March 31
Particul N
nrticulars 03 March 31,2022
India 251 82 11715
Singapure 948 56 804 45
Others 62 66 1172 1R
el
Total 1.263.04 1,053.78

Non-current asscts (excluding financral sssels under financial mstruments) of continuing and discontinued operations as at March 3, 2023 and March 31, 2022 arc in India




Noard Phiarma Privade Limited (CTN:U T899 KA 197HP IO 142872)
Sates e shandalone Tianaal statements Ton he vear ended March V2023
CAmount m Rupees Millon, exeept tor shaees datant s othenwise stated

Nule
N
36 Fioancinl instruments
Jil o Categories ol flnancinl imyirmments
s a1
i March 31.2023 Murch 31,2022
Carrying Fuair
) Varlue Value
Financial ussets:
Measured wt nmortised cost
Cash and bank balances A 7136 1274
Frade reeenables bnd Y 148 72 SZHAS
Other lnancial assuts al amortised <ost RE Y 1497 002
Menswred al fuir value through profit or loss
Invesiment m mutual funds 203 40 20 46 3153 V1153
Thlal financial nssels 784,51 T84.51 8Y4.84 894.84
Finang
Mensired at umortised cost
Hotrowings mehidmy curvent matunties ol nun current burrowings sl 39 95319 07 vl DIREY
sy livinbpes 5122 2543 .
Trade payables 179 41 179 14 13259 33359
e Doancial labiliies 1398 1298 2139 2138
Totnl Rnncial fhbilitics — - 1.170.73 145,51 128732 1.267.29
36,2 Fair value ineasurements
This nole provides mfermanion about how the Company determines fair values of varous financial assets and hnancial habiiies
Fair vuloe lierarchy
Ihe fatr vaiue buerarchy 1s based on inputs 1o valuation techmgues that aie used Lo measure Latr value that e erther abservahle or unobservable and covsist ot the
followmy tuee levels
- Quoted prices (unadyusied) mactive markets forideeneal wssets or liabsihities
level Inputs other than guoted prices mehuded withim Level § (ha are observable tor the asset o halility eilhes dieectly i1 e as poces) or wdirectly re dernald
from prices)
I evel 1= laputs for the assels o labtlies that are aot based on observable market data tinobservable inpusy
36.2.1 Fair value of the Company's financinl nssets and financis! liabilities that are mea rred ki fair value on a recurring ba
Sante ol lhe Company s haancsal o and Taanesal Tabilities are measured at fan value at 1he end ol vach reporting penodd e follawing table gives infornmalion
about how the Farr values o) these Nnaneial assets and [inancial habilities ae determined (in particular, the valuation tezhmaueds) and impts used)
Finuncinl assots ¢ inancial labilities Fair value as at Fair valie Valuntion ((:clmiqnc(s) and key
lilorarchy inpui(s)
Mnorch 31, 2023 Muarch 31. 2022
Finanehal assitss
Far value)s dJeternmmed based on
Investment i mutuak lunds 207 16 31053 |l the net assel valie published by
respectin e lupds
36.1.2 v vulue ol Grancial nssets and Rancial tiabilities that are not measured at fir value (bul thir sslue diselosures are required)
[he management assessed tat the carving amounts of lindneial assets and Dnancial Tabslities fescepl bonowings) recownised m the financial statements at amoivsed
costwill reasananly approximate then *a salues
he below table summanses the bortowmgs which are measured at amortised cost and tor whieh values are disclosed. with corresporling cariyiog values
Asul Murels 31,2023 As al March 31,2022
Particalnrs e
Corrying Amount Fair Vulue Fuir Vialue
Finnncinl linbilities:
s 931 310 1351 50 W7 i 33
363 Finnnvcigl visk management abjectives

ish .

anpredicralnhit ol Lnancaal markels and seck o mimmuse potential adserse etiees on s Gaancal performanee The

The Compuny s delivilies e<pose st e s wely ol oanel watket sk eredit sk and bguidity sk

prims

caehange ish o The Boand ol Direaias e e v d agiees poiaes Tornnn ¢ cunl the e sk whienare sumonmed below

he Company s onmar, fovus s Lo taresee the

rarket nisk 1o the Campany s o ciun



Noaci Pharon Private Limited (CEINGUT4R90KALITRPTC142872)
dies 1o the standitene Tt statements cor he yeas ended March 31

nes

Amount i Rupees Molbon except for shares Juta or 95 otherwise stated)

Note
No
36 3.1 Yorcign currency rish management
The Campany ~ exposed Lo foreign e<chimse 1k die 1o
- debt o diled 1 e curreney
exposure asinz from bansactons relaime 1o purehises, ievenues, ¢apenses. cle 1o e setthed tanlun and oside the groupr i currencies sthee than the wanctional
currency al the respecthive enhities
e carrymg amount of the Company « fareigr entiency denoannaied manetary abidines (pavabiles) and assels (recersablus) i at the end ol reporting perod e as
nder
Amatnt reccivable ! (paynble) st
) March 31. 2023 March 31,2022
Exposure to the Carrency : fareign Tn Rs. . foreign in Rs.
Currency Ciirrency
UsD 289 2372t 558 125 28
LR V2 RIEN 0ol [ENR}]
CHF (054 (412} {002y 1178
GBP 0 003 014 - .
36,3.2 Forcign currency sensitivity nnalysis
Finaneral nstruments affected by changes m foragn exchange rates melude loans forewen currencres Fhe Company considers U8 Dollar and the Euro to be principal
currenetes whieh cequire mantoring and sk nutizaton The impact on account ot 594 apprecialion  deprecraton i the exchange rate o the above (orewn currencies
auainst Rs s given below
Exposure tn the Currency Inerease! [Deereased in Prafit
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Aqrarecuation i e £ IS1 1136
Depreciaion i the USD 1t Ba) (21 2¢)
Appreciation w the GUR aim 006
Depr (01 006
Apeasiatiam | 20 © (91
Deguezanon i the CHE 019
Ypgrrecinion o the GBP
[preeranon i ine GBP
he enpaet on profit has been woned at by applving the eHeets of appreciation  deprecanon efieets ol carrency on the nel posilion {As: in toreign currency -
Liatwhizs i focetun ¢urrencv) in Lthe iespeclive curienaices
For the purpose ol the abave table. 1t 1s assumed il the canving calue ol the fdrancial asses and habihies as atthe end ol tespeetive financial years remains constant
therealler The excriange rale considered 1o the sensinvily analysisos Ihe ex chznge rale orevalent 1 at each yeur end
The sensinvity anat=sis might nol be cepreseniative ot mberent Toreign exehange nsk Jue 1w the Tact that the lorcizs exposure al he end ol the renarting penod niisht
10t refleet the exposme durmg the year
36.3.3 [nterest rote risk management

(nterest rate risk is the nisk that the B value or tutare caal Hows ol a tmancal instrament will flecluate recaase of changes i markel mierest rates The Conpany s

evposure to the nisk of changes i markel mterest “ates elates primanly to the Cempany s deby oblsatens with Doaling interest rates Such risky are overseen by ihe

Company s curporate (rey stiny depanment as well s senor managemen!

Mtk repurting date e mterest ale protile ol the Compars

Inferest-bearng Toaneal mstroments s as fellow

Particalars

Fixed-rate insiruments

Financial nssets

Balance with banks held as margim mones
Financial linbilities

Loans from related parties

Variable-rnce insiruments
Financinl linbilities
Borrowmes from banks and Hinancial mshilions

As nl
Murch 31,2023 | March 31.2022
482 )RS
iy o7
<)y S

Interest rate sensitivily unanlysis

Fimanendl isiruments alfected Dy marest rate changes mclude seeured long wim loans From banks. seenred Tona term fomns from others unsecured ong term s,

secured short eam loans Irom banks and nnsecured

a5 g conseguence of changes i nleres
rale fmancial assets

ncrease monterest rates on Hoating

ot term loans rom banks and athers  This compuiator does net insolse a revaluauon ol the Fair valie of Joans

iates The computation afse as ames than an iciease i mierest aes o Moatme rate Tabiires wall nor necessanly imalse an

Particnlars

March 31,2023 [March 31.2022

luriyg the sespects & yens will he

The impact of 4 1% elance inointerest rates on the prohcat anawal penod cuminig

fie lodns 4t cach v s e man constant 953 908

CHARTERED
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Nuri Pharma Private Limited (CIN:LT4899KA1978P TC142872)
Nates 1o the standalone linercial statements “or the vear ended March 312023

{Amount n Rupees Miblion exeept For shares lita or as olherwise stated )

Nole

No.

364

36.5

36.5,

Inlerest rale swap confracts
an contracts the Company agrees (0 exchange the difference hetween fived and floatng rate mlerest amounts caleulated on agreed notional

Lnder interest rate s
principal amounts Such cantrag s enable the Company (o mibgale the risk of cash Now exposures on the varrable 1aic harrowings

The interest ate swaps seltle on g quarterly basis Fhe Noaiing rale oo the interest rate swaps s the local mierbank rate 10 the cuniency althe loan The Company vall

settle e difference belween the fixed and Nouting mierest rae on  net basis

Credit visk management

Credil nsk refers 1o the nisk that s countesparty will default on s contractual obhgations tesulbmg m Tinancial loss to the Company  Credil Risk 1o the campany
primanly anses from trade receivables Credit nisk also anses from cash and cash equivalents, Mnancial instruments and deposits with banks and financial tnsutabions
and other (inancial assels

The Company has adopled u policy of only dealing with creditwortly counterparties and obtarming sufficient collateral, where appropriale, as a means of mitigauny the
risk of Fmancial loss from defaulls The Company unly transacts with entities that are rated the equivalent of investment yrade and above

The credit nsk on iquid funds and derivative financial instruments 15 lumited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international

credil-rating avencies

Liquidily risk manngement

Ultnnare responsibility for hiquidity risk management rests wilh the board of directors, which lias established an appropriate hquidity sk imanagement lramework for
the management of the Company's short-lerm medium-lerm and long-lerm funding and liquidity management requirements [he Campany manages liqudity nsk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking Tacilibes and reserve borrowiig facthties. by conlinuonsly monttoriny forecast and actusl short term and lony term cash fows,
and by matching the maturity profiles of {inancial assets and habilities

Liquidity analysis far Noun-Derivative Liabilities

ihe following table details the Company's remaimng contractual maturily for 1ls non-derivauve financial habilibes with agrecd repayment periods The wables have been
drawn up based on the undisconnied cash lMows of finznctal lalyhities based on the earliest date an which (he Company can be required to pay The 1able include
repayment of prncipal amounts The contractual matunty 15 based on the eariest date an which the Company may be required to pay

Cnrryi
Financinl linbilities <1 year 1to 3 venrs >J years Total neTying
— — value
076 70 276 09 933 39 953139
508 88 404 43 Y1331 907 2|
a3 163 V63
44 | 44 | 44
i s 3536 1544 252z
1 1008 3336 18 2543
150 49 190 49 100 49
3352 54 352 54 35254

36,52 Capital Manngement:

The Company (nanages 11s capital to ensure that enhities 1n the Company will e uble io continue as wouny concerns while maximistiyg the return 1o stakeholders thiough
the oplimsation of the devt and equity batance 1he capual structure ol the Company consists of net dent (bortawings orfset by cash and bank bajances) and tonal equily
sF the Cempuny

b capinal struciure is as foflowas

Particnlars I X T ——
March 31,2023 |[March 31, 2023

Equity attnbutable w the equity share helders of the compeny 32695 1306 47
Equity as a percenlage of loial capital 160" 59%
Current borrowings 67677 781 49
Non-current borrowings 27669 125 45
Total borrowings 983.39 906.94
155 Cash and cash equivalents XA i 89
Net borrowines 950.55 905.05
Nel borrowines as a percentage of 1otal capital 41%
Totel eapital (borrowings and equity) 1,780.34 2.213.41

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS




Naari Pharma Private Limited (CTN:U74899RA1078P I'C142872)
~Lotes 1o the standalone lnaneral satements (@ the year ended Nareh 31 2023

Amountm Rupees Milhen. exeept for shares data on os othersise statedy

ke
N

38

Iiscontinued Operations
g the cutent year Tou statewe |

emered Mo o Business Transter Agrecent with Aresko Lyfe
ration of

esy reisohs, the Compin

Seiences Private Lited therem after sefemed (o as "Areshoa™or sale ofits APEbusimess on a stump sale basts for o consid
fes 120 million The transection tecemmiended by Board of Diectors is approved by shareholders Dutme the vear. the Company

Jecetved an advance ol Ry 30 million auamst the sand sale and the same 15 disclosed undet ather curtent habilines

Uhe tansacton 1s expected 1o he completed in financral vear ended Maich 31,2024 The compirative Pralit(Loss fiom discontinued
operations have been presented as 1Y these operations were discontinued in the prior yvear as well

Pursunst 1o the areentent etered o tin (e sile of AP Bisimess, Hie ©omgsnn & Aresko s entered into 4 Shmlactuy g Services
an the Compary shall dedicaze the AP Manubaeturmg Site exclusively for Arerho and m
ind operaung the

Awrgement oa November 1, 2022 wh
constilermuon of the exchustyity commizied by the Contpany. Aresko shall pay e Company all cost ol

Sanglaciime Site mcludimg smplovee oosts. over-heads  maternds, leenses. pemussions and all worhing=capnal eliting lo the

Manufacturing Site with a mark-up of 5% on such costs

Particulars Yearenqel
March 31,2023 |March 31, 2022

Revenue 1718 63 18270
Other Income . .
Total revenne from disconlinued operations 278 63 182 70
Deprecration and amortisation expense 2705 519
Other expenses charged-olT 1o the Statement of Protirand Loss 35102 320 37
Total expenses from discontinued operations (11) 307 345 86
Loss from discontinued operation (111 =1- 1) 199 14y 11BA 16}
Gain / (loss) on disposal ol
- Kashipur AP business (587 20) s}
Nel gnin / (toss) on disposal of businesses (V) 1587 26) -
Gain/ (Loss) from discontinued aperations before tax (¥ = 11+ 1V) 11— (686 70 163 16
Atinibutable mcome lax expense (V) . .
Nel gain / (loss) from discontinued operations after tax (V - V1) (686 701 1103 61
(i} Consideration received
Purticulars Total
30 nout regeveldirec sale 1 cash 120 00
Totwl consuderation ~_120.00
() Careving value of assetand linbilitics as al balance sheet date
Particulirs Total
Noi-curieil assets 38941
Current assels 399 31
Non-curtent liabilites {618
et liabafities 75 2B)
Nef assets of discuntinued operations 707.26
(¢} Loss on disposil
Purticulirs Total
L omsidenon ecuivedaveurvable 120 00

visels dispised vl 707 26
1 spenses patianiing 1o thipial .
Loss on ifisy I (587.26)
() Set cash iniluw on dispasal
Particulars
Constdermtion rece el recerable iy 12000
Loss ©xpeinses pettamig Lo disposal
e Cash and cash cuurvalent baiances disposed oil -
et Caslt inflown 120,00
€ ash fows from discontinued aperatins

J . Y ear ended

usiicutie Viarch 31,2023 |Mareh 51,2022
ook el 0o s (oUW s) TTom apetaume igilies 149 i) INELT
Net ¢shantiows sautflows i om mseshing acuviies 1325 (it 3ha
eet cash snilows toutlowsy o inanciie sehivies - -
Net cash inMows/(outows) (184 15y (A28 153




Nwirei Phorma Privace Limited (CIN:UT4899KA1978PTC142872)

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note
No.

37 Rutin \ialysiz

 upital cmploned is defimed ay By Debt and fease Tabilin

Particulars Murc':slﬂlf 2023 m.-.-:s;fzozz Change Rativs have a variance of >25% due to
€ wrrent Ratio - m tres (A) /(B) 0.97 093 4% [Notappheable
Cirrent Assets () 1191 38 1,308 33
Ciurrent Liabilites (B) 1.23417 140301
Irel-Equity Ratio - i tes (C) /(D) 1.18 0.71 | 66" |Due tothe lenm Lomns avuiled during the year
[eb including Tease liabilities(C) 978 61 932137
Kty (1)) 82695 1 306 47
Laguity o defined av gty share capiial and Other equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio - 17 tumey (E) [ ((F) +(G) 1.84 1.01 | 82% |Due to Increase in Profit and less debl repaymen s
wonpared to Previous year
Carnigs Belore lnterest. Taxes. Depreciation and Mnoriiaiion 32196 24798
I
Debt repayiment (F) 129 88 202 30
Interest payments (G) 44 77 4210
Farningy before interestiaves. depreciation und amartisalion is
defimedd s Profit for the veur hefore exceprional ttems amd
st fakd) Deprecraiom and nortisation (add) Fianee o
ileend vistere s e e
Tiehy repuvment i defined as veind repuement of loos o
Hatths and lease perviments dureng the vear
feiterens peyments 1 defined as mterest puied v loans and fease
Leaibieline divmge the veer
Weturn on Equity ratio (H) /(D) 24, T, 11.90% | 108% |Due to increase in nel profit during the year
Nel profit (1) 205 00 155 44
Equity (1) 82695 1.206 47
Nerprofin o defured as Profit Jor the vear afier fux
Piguny iy defined s gty shute capial and Other equre
Inventory turnover ratin (K) /(L) 0.80 0.69 | 16% [Notapplicable
Cosl ol goods sold (K) 179 52 21308
Aveage Inventory (L) 22562 31080
i af goods wid i defimed as Coseof materiats < mnsnnned,
Pirchives of stack-m-trade umd Changes i oventuries of
finsslrs ! goods amd work-m-progress
Boertiiee imventory is defined as averaye of wiventoreys ox af tie
Bevmntmg and ay ai the end of ihe vear.
F'ude receivables turnover ratio (M)/(N) 1.95 1.92 2% [Notapplicable
Revenue (iom operations (M) 984 42 871 08
Average |rade recervables (N) 505 14 453 74
teerie Trade recervabfes iy defined (v average of Trade
recenvabdon as of the begnmung and s at the end af the vwar.
I'radde payables turnaver ratio (O) / (P) 0,70 0.60 | 17% |%otapplicable
Cost of goods sold (O} 79 52 21308
Ay crage Trade payables () 255 87 356 80
Were Trade pavables iy defined as average of Trade
gl as af the bevmmng aind as at the end of the vear
Net capital turnover ratio (Q)/ (R) (23.01) (9.20h] 150" e Dt sitles
Sales Tumaver {Q) 084 42 371 08
Waning Capstal (R) 427 (94 68)
Net prafit ratio (8)/(T) 2011 17000 18% [Nt applicable
Nel prorit i 8) 205.00 155 44
Gross Revenue (1) 1 D19 23 91379
Firos Bevenne ix defined av Revere foom cperato e
Lol dergrsiine
Retuen on capital employed (L) / (V) 1852 9.48% |  64% |lncredsed due 1o erease et protivdusmye the yem
Farmnes Before Intetest and Tuaes 1L 280 25 21219
Capital Employed tV) 1.805 56 222884
Ty before mterevt amd fuces o defored o
ferot fur the Cear before exceptionad items wid saves faddy
{ oty o (less) naerest scome |

&
;o8
CHARTERED \&




39 The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘Code’) relating (0 employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020 The Code has been published in the Gazette of India 1lowever. the date on which the Code will come into etlect has not been noulficd The Company will assess

the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will 1ecord any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective

40 Recent Pronouncement:
On March 31, 2023 the Minmsiry of Corporate Aflairs {MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendiment Rules. 2023 This nolilication has
resuled into amendments in the following existing accounting standards which are applicable to the Company from April 1. 2023

i Ind AS 102 - Share=based payment

i Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations

ni Ind AS 107 = Financial Instrumenls. Disclosures

iv Ind AS 109 — Fmancial Instiiments

v Ind AS 118 = Revenue from Contacts with Customers

vi Ind AS | = Presentation of Finoncial Stalements

vii Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
vili Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

X Ind AS 34 - Interim Frnancial Reporting
The Company is in the process of evaluating ihe impact of the above amendments on the Company s tinancial statementls

41 Other Statutory Information
() The Company does not have any Benami property. wheie any proceeding s been initiated or pending against he Company for holding any Benami property
(b} The Company does not have any charges or satislaction which is yet to be registered wilh ROC beyoud the statutory period

{c) The Company has not traded ot invested in Cryplo currency or Vidual Cunency during the financial yeas
{d) The Company has no tansaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sunendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

{e) The Company has bormowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets, the quarterly retms or stateinents of curTent assets has been fled by the
Company with banks are my agicement with the books of’accounts

(1) The Company has not been declared willful detaulter by any bank or financial Institution ot olher lender

() The Company does not have any (ransactions with companics struck off.

{h) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign enlilies {Infermediaries) with the understanding
that (he Intermediary shall:

1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in alher persons or entities identitied in any manoer whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate BeneFiciaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee. security ot the like 1o or on behalfof the Ultinate Beneficiaries

The Company has nol recerved any fund from any person(s! or eatity(ies), including forcign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Company shail:
i1 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons o1 entities identified 1n any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Bencliciaries) or

i1} provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Company has not any such (ransaction which is not 1ecorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income dusing the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 {such as. search or suivey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961

42 The previous yeat's figuies have been re-prouped/cclussilied. where necessary to confirm o current year's classification

43 Approval of financial statements:
The Company's standaione finanuial statements are approved for 1ssue by the bowrd ol duceton 48

o ooy

|'Ill‘llll|!|f i
Wikl Hovcon

TRt TN 07405773

Place = Bengaluru

Place Singapore
Date  September 30, 2023

Date  September 30. 2023

CHARTERED
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